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Carpetright plc is Europe’s leading
specialist floor coverings retailer.
Since the first store was opened
in 1988 the business has followed
a controlled store expansion
programme developing both
organically and, in recent years,
through acquisition within the

UK and other European countries.

The Group trades from 703 stores
across Europe and employs
approximately 4,000 staff. The Group
is organised into two geographical
regions, the UK & Rol (comprising
the UK and the Republic of Ireland)
and the Rest of Europe (comprising
The Netherlands and Belgium).




Overview

Financial highlights

Revenue £516.6m £482.8m 7.0%
Underlying profit before tax £28.2m £17.2m 64.0%
Profit before tax £22.3m £16.7m 33.5%
Underlying earnings per share 31.6p 18.2p 73 6%
Basic earnings per share 23.5p 17.6p 33.5%
Dividend per share 16.0p 8 0p 100.0%

Whare this review makes reference to Underlying these relate to profit/earnings before exceptional stemns

www.earpstnght.plc.uk

AOAIDAD

MDA SSOAESNE

podu siepang

BIUMLBAOY
R T T GRS |

SRENIEREG [T



2

Business overview

Strong market positions and geographic regions

Close to Store portfolio at 1 May 2010
4 000 UK & Rol -
, Standalone 537 4,689
Concessions 49 119
People o wem

Rest of Europe

The Netherands 89 1,063

4 Belgium 28 335

C t - Total 117 1,398

o u n rl es Group total 703 6,206
|

703
Sites

UK
561
Netherlands

Stores

23 - 89

Stores

Belgium

28

Stores
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Regional performance
UK & Rol

52 weeks ending

52 weeks ending

1 May 2010 2 May 2009
Revenue £425.2m £394.1m
Underlying operating profit £26.2m £156m
Trading space sq ft '000 4,808 4,632
Rest of Europe!

Revenue £89.2m £85 7m
Underlying operating profit £9.6m £87m
Trading space sq ft '000 1,398 1,400

I The Netheriands and Belgmum only

| QO

MOAIIAD

Mouau seakEsng
podat suo3dang

SIURLLIBADG
00M 22015080

SpERDAE jEoueUy




Chairman’s statement

Lord Hams of Peckham
Chatrman and Chief Executive

Significant recovery
in profitability

Campatnght pic Anmal report and accounts 2010

In a challenging year, I am pleased to report that Carpetnight has
delivered an improved performance The Group has grown sales and
cemmenced the development of new revenue streams in the house
building and 1nsurance sectors, helping to deliver a significant
tecovery 1n profitability over the depressed level reported in

the privr year

Iotal revenue [or the 52 weeks ended 1 May 2010 increased by 7 0%
10 £516 6m Underlying profit before 1ax increased by 64 0% 10 £28 2m
After the impact of exceptional ttems, reported profit before tax
mncreased to £22 3m Underlying earnings per share have risen

by 73 6% to 31 6p and basic earmngs per share increased to 23 5p
Our focus on debt reduction has dehvered results, with strong free
cash flow of £32 Om, reducing net debt by £258m 10 £71 3m

Ths sohid performance has led the Board to recommend a final
dividend of 8 Op per share Having previously paid an interim
dividend of 8 Op per share the total dividend for the period will
therefore be 16 Op per share, an increase of 100% on the previous year

These results have been delivered through a period of econonuc
recession, with fears of unernployment and tax increases adversely
affecting consumer confidence Throughout the peniod we continued
to manage the busmness by exerting tight control over all costs, capital
expenditure, stock and cash flow

Qur businesses in the UK and Republic of Ircland have returned
to growth, with underlymng operating profits up 67 9% to £26 2m,
although I recognise this 1s only the start of a journey to return

to previous levels of profitanlity In Lurope, our businesses in The
Netherlands and Belgusm have conunued to grow with underlying
operating profits up 10 3% to a record level of £9 6m Duning the year
we took the decision to withdraw from trading in Poland Since 115
launch four years ago, the busmess had failed to establish sufficient
trading momentum and crtrcal mass, and the resulting performance
had been disappomting. Thus exat was completed by the year end

[ would hke to thank all our employees for their continued
commutment, contribution and loyalty throughout the year

1L 15 people who make retan] businesses and [ believe we have a
fantastic teamn of loyal, hard working staif at Carpetright It 1s thus
team which has collectively been responsible for the progress the
Group has made and I look forward to working with them n
the year ahead

Geoff Brady 15 leaving the Board on 31 August 2010 after three years
T would like to thank him for hus contribution over that penod

Although we are planming for consumer demand across Europe

to remain subdued, we have market leading positions mn all our
geographical areas with strong value led retail brands [ believe this
enables us to louk confidently to the future as and when the econonme
condiiens improve

Lord Harns of Peckham
Chairman and Chief Executive




Directors’ report: Business review

o

The Directors present their Annual Report to the shareholders together with the
audited financial statements for the financial year ended 1 May 2010. This report,
together with the Chairman’s Statement describe the results and activity for the
period, future plans, trends and factors affecting the development, position

and performance of the business.

Pnncipal activities

Carpetright plc 1s Europe’s leading specialist floor
covering retailer, selling a wide range of carpets,
rugs, vinyls and laminates together with associated
accessories In addition, the product offering was
extended to selling beds in the UK following the
acquusition of Sleepright in December 2008

The Group trades from 703 stores organised

and managed in two geographical segments
These are the ‘UK & Rol’ (compnsing the UK and
the Republic of Ireland) and the ‘Rest of Europe’
(comprising The Netherlands and Belgium)

Business objective and strategies

'The primary financial objective of the Group 1s to
deliver long-term sustainable growth 1n earnings per
share and cash flow We mm to achieve this through
the following strategies

Pnmary focus on floor covenngs

Ensuning we continually improve and develop our produtct ranges
to provide consumers with a market leading product cheice which
olfers great value, backed up by excellent customer service,

Develop a compettive bed proposihon
To grow the sales of beds and associated products, following
the same principles of choice, value and service

Manage our store portfolio

Lo grow our store base mto local markets where we are not
represented and 1o continually exploit opportunmties which deliver
better overall profitability

Expansion into European countnes
To dentify and pursue opportumities to grow Group profitability
by extending the brand strengths across Europe

Reaching more customers through additional channels

To extend the reach of Carpetright’s brand by growing sales through
the mnsurance replacement market, becoming the preferred suppher
of floor covering for new homes and developing our onhine business

We aim to act responsibly towards all our
stakeholders, including customers, suppliers,
employees and the communities in which we
operate Our annual Corporate Responsibility
Report 15 available at www carpetright plc uk
with a summary of our approach on pages 13
and 14 of this report

wwwwnomgm.plc.uk
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Operational and financial review

Financial highlights

A summary of the reported financial results for Lhe year ended
1 May 2010 1s sel out below

2010 200%
Emn £m Chauge

Revenue 516.6 482 8 7 0%
Underlying* operating 341 228 48 6%
profit
Net finance charges (5.9) 56 (54%
Undertying* profit before tax 282 172 640%
Exceptional items {5.9) 05)
Profit before tax 22.3 167 33 5%
Earnings per share {pence)

underying* 316 182 73 6%

basic 235 176 335%
Didends per share {pence) 160 80 1000%
Net debt (71.3) (97 1) £258m

* Where this review makes reference to "Underlying these relate to profit/earnings
before excepuonal items

Performance by business
For year to 1 May 2010

Overview

Total sales increased by 7 0% to £516 6m, with all continuing
businesses showing growth [Dunng the year, the Group opened
53 stores and closed 45 which gave a net increase of eight stores
and a total store basc of 703 The total store space grew by 0 8%
to 6 2 million square feet

“The return to sales growth of the UK & Republic of Ireland busimess
was the key driver for the improvement m underlying operating profit
to £34 1m, an 1ncrease of 49 6% on the last year Net finance charges
were £0 3m hugher a1 £5 9m, reflecting the full year impact of the
refinancing arrangements completed m Apnl 2009 These combined
te generate an underlying profit before tax of £28 2m, an increase
0f 64 0% on the prior year

Lxceptional charges totalled £5 9m (2009 £0 5m) and were principally
a combination of the cost of exating the Polish market and non-cash
store impairment charges

As aresult, profit before tax increased by 33 5% to £22 3m
Basic earmings per share increased by 33 5% to 23 5p reflecting
the increase in post tax earnings

Yiar on year growth

Total

tm Reponied Local currency Lake for hinet
Revenue
UK & Rol 4252 79% 79% 31%
The Netherlands and Belgium 892 41% {17%) {10%)
Revenue excluding Poland 5144 7 2%
Poland 22 26 7%) {23 0%)
Total revenue 516 6 7.0%
Underlying operating profit
UK & Rol 262 67 9% 67 9%
The Netherlands and Belgium 96 103% 4 9%
Undertying profit excluding Poland 358 497%
Poland {17 {(13.3%)} {14 7%)
Total undertying operating profit 341 49.6%
Undertying operating profit %
UK & Rol 62% +2.2pp
The Netherlands and Belgium 10 8% +0 6pp
Operating profit excluding Poland 7 0% +1 9pp
Poland {77 3%) na
Total underlying operating profit 6.6% +1 9pp

1 Like for-itke sales growth — calculated as this years net sales dvaded by last years net sales for all stores that are at least 12 months ofd at the beginning of our financial year Stores clesed
dunng the veur are excluded from both years No account 1s taken of changes to store size or the introduction of third party concessions Sales from insurance and house bwtding

contracts are supphed through the stores and inclided in therr figures,
2 Undurdying operating profits - operating profit exchuding exceptional terns

Carmpetright plc Arvwial report and acoounts 2010




UK & Republic of Ireland performance review

Key financial results

2010 2009

£m £m Change

Revenue 425.2 3941 7 9%
Like-for-like sales 31% {13 5%)

Gross profit 263.7 244 6 7 8%

Gross profit % 62.0% 62 1% {0 1pp)

Underlying operating profit 26.2 156 67 9%

Undertying operating profit % 6 2% 40% 22pp

UK & Rol portfolio
Store umbers Sqft (00c)

2 May 1 May 2 May 1 May

2009 Opentngs Chosures 2010 200% 2010

Standalone 510 36 Q) 537 4,516 4,689

Concessions 57 15 23) 49 116 119

Total 567 51 (32) 586 4,632 4,808

In the UK & Rol, total revenue mncreased year-on-year by 7 9% to
£425 2m The mclusion of Sleepright for ws first full year contnbuted
2 0% of this increase We have opened 51 new stores adding 328k sq fi
of selling space duning the year Including the impact of 32 closurcs,
this translated mio net space growth of 176k sq fi, an increase of

3 8% since the start of the year

The year saw a return to posttive sales growth n the first quarter which
accelerated to double digit growth in the pertod up to December 2009
Sales since January were more subdued, resultmg i a full year
like-for-like performance of +3 1% This growth reflects an underiying
recovery n mortgage approval figures and the impact of the contraction
of a competitor in the UK, Allied Carpets, in the period since July 2009

The increase n UK sales has been predonunantly carpet, where the
proportion of cut length business has increased relative to the ‘pay and
take’ roll stock The vanyl business has also grown Sales of lamunate/
wood categones have continued 1o decline, which we helieve s a
reflection of the growing customer appreaiation of the benefits

of vinyl and a trend back to carpet

‘The fragie state of the economy in the Republic of Ireland ineviably
impacted our business there We rematn comrmtted te continuing to trade
in thus geographic market and, in the hight of the prevailling economuc
conditions, have reduced our prices with the aum of increasing volumes

We believe much of Carpetright’s success 1s attnbuted to our focus on
offening the widest range of carpet at the keenest pnces This view was
supported during the year by externally conducted market research
which indicated buth strong recogmuoen of the Carpetright brand
and a strong association with being the ‘first choice” for fitted carpet
Thus research has also provided insight into arcas for development

As an example of acivity being undertaken, we have independently
assessed 536 independent fitters withan the last year to ensure they
are appropriately qualified to carry out their role on our behalf

In the Autumn of 2009 we re-launched our websites These offer the
consumer the ability 16 order samples, book a consultation appomtment
and order products on-lmne The sites are generating over 40,000 unique
visitors each week, which represents a powerful method of accessing
and converting potential customers

The development and integration of the Sleepright bedding business
continued throughout the year The focus has been on the product,
promotional offers and reducing delivery times The introduction
of beds to our offer presents an opportumty to capitalise on the
accessibility of our store lecations and grow sales per square foot

We have continued to focus un gaining addiional sales through

the insurance replacement bustness This has proved successful,
with contracts secured from three of the largest domestic insurance
providers in the country These contracts commenced during the year
and, after positive feedback about the quality of our products and
service, the volume of business through this channel, although still
small relative to the Groups total revenue, continues to grow

During the year sigruficant acuvity was devoted to developtng an
approprate offer for the house bulder market. Thas 1s for both the
‘contract’ side, where floor coverings are lard in communal areas, and by
introducing a ‘voucher’ offer for indmduals to select products for therr
own new home Although the sales to date have been mirumal due to
the longer lead tune i the development of new homes, we bebeve we
have the foundations to grow thus sigruficantly i the comng year

Gross profit increased by 7 8% to £263 7m, representing a gross profit
margn of 62 0% (2009 62 1%) The introducuon and development

of beds tnto the produect mux accounted for a 0 7 percentage point
decline, as this part of the business operates on a lower gross margin than
floor coverings The growth of the insurance business also had a dilutive
effect of 0 4 percentage pownts Thus was offset by an improvement in the
underlying floor covermg margin of one percentage pownt, achueved

www.carpetright plc.uk
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Operational and financial review continued

through a combination of management of promottons, negotiation with
suppliers and increased productity in the Purfleet cutting facilty

The total UK & Rol cost base increased by 3 7% compared to last year
to £237 5m Thus mcluded the tmpact of the first full year of Sleepnight,
which accounted for 1 4% of the growth In like-for-like stores, the

overall costs were level with the prior year Store payroll costs continue

to be managed closely to the volume of sales, rent 1n hike- for-hke stores
mncreased by a modest 2 2% reflecting a weakening of the property
market in the current econonue cimate and we continued to increase
our advertising spend which was up £1 Imto £11 4m, as we believe

1t continues to drive consumers Lo our stores

Underlymng operating profit increased by 67 9% to £26 2m.

The Netherlands and Belgium performance review

Key financial resuits

2010 2009 Change Change
£m tm (Reported) {Constunt Currency)
Revenue 892 857 41% {1 7%)
Like-for-like sales {1.0%)} 27%
Gross profit 51.6 495 42% {1 5%)
Gross profit % 57.8% 57 8% Leve!
Underlying operating profit 9.6 87 103% 4 9%
Underlying operating profit % 10.8% 102% 06pp 06pp

In The Netherlands and Belgium, total reported revenue increased
year-on-year by 4 1% to £89 2m benefiting from a favourable move
on exchange rates Sales in local currency dechined 1 7% We opened
two new stores adding 17k sq ft of selling space duning the year

The second of these was a tral of a ‘sample only” stere, which 1s trading
ahead of our expectations and may provide an opportunity for [uture
store growth Incuding the impact of one dlosure, this translated

mto net space dechne of 2k sq ft, a decrease of 0 2% since the start

of the year The number of stores trading at the end of the year was
117 (2009 116) Like-for-like sales in the first half declined by 3 6%,
but an encouraging recovery m the second half resulted n a full year
performance down only 1 0% Qperationally, we have introduced new
products and adapted our promotional offer to consumer demand,
resuling in a growth m sales of both laminate and vinyi

Poland

The reported underlying loss in Poland was £1 7m, an ncrease
of £0 2m on the previous year

As previousty announced, following a review of the Polish business by
the Board 1n the Autumn of 2009, the decision was taken to withdraw
from trading mn thus market In the period since its launch four years ago,
the business had fatled to establish sufficient trading momentum and
critical mass, and the resulting performance had been disappointing
All the stores have now been closed. This has resulted in a non-recurnng
cost of £3 5m, which 15 a combination of a non-cash write down

of the fixed assels to their realised value and other costs incurred
specifically for the closure Thus is reported within exceptional items

Carpetright plc Annunl report and accournts 2010

Gross profit increased 1n both countries on the back of improved
rebates and effective management of the promotional mux Reported
operaung costs increased by 2 9% to £42 0m, demonstrating the
impact of the movement m exchange rates In local currency terms,
costs declined by 2 8% despite inherent inflationary pressures

on employment and occupancy costs This reflected the tight
management control and focus on aclueving efficiencies within

the whole operation

‘The net result was an underlying operatng profit of £9 6m, an increase
of 103% In local currency terms, the underlyig profit increased
by 4 9%




Group financial review

Net finance costs and taxation

Net finance charges were £5 9m (2009 £5 6m) reflecting lower
deposit rates on cash balances The effective tax rate on profits
15 29 5% (2009 29 8%) Thus has decreased due to the impact
of overseas tax movements

Exceptional tems
The Group recorded a net charge of £59m (2009 £0 5m) i the year

We have continued to trade our property portfolio, although market
conditrons have made this moere challenging A loss of £0 7m was
mcurred (2009 gam of £1 8m)

As a result of the challenging retail environment we have reviewed

the carrying value of the store assets in our balance sheet The models
used (o value these assets include a number of assumptions relating

to market growth and inflationary expectations The tests have led

to a net impairment of £1 4m (2009 £0 9m) 1n relation to 13 stores,
principally located in the Republic of Ireland In additson, there 1s

one vacant leased property and two properties which are occupted by
tenants at a rent below the head lease costs An onerous lease provision
has been made on the basis of the difference between the expected
inflows and outflows for these properties

As dinclosed earlier, the costs of withdrawing {from Poland total

£3 5m The non-recurnng pre-opening costs of the Purfleet cutting
and distribution centre recognised tn 2007/08 were over-provided
by £1 1m and have been released

Exceptional items

(Charge)/gan
Pl 2009
ém £m
Profit/{Loss) on disposal of properbes on 18
UK & Ro! Store Impairment charge (14) 09
UK & Rol Onerous leases {14 -
Poland Store Impairment Charge (18) -
Closure costs 1n -
Over-provision from pre-opening
cost of Purfleet 11 -
Re-orgamisation cost
of acquired businesses - (12)
Impaimment of Investment
In joint venture - {02)
59 {05)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share mncreased by 33 5% to 23 5 pence, reflecng
a similar increase m post tax earrangs Underlying earmings per share
increased to 31 6 pence

Dividend

Whlst the underlying profitability has improved 1n 2009/10, there
remans continued uncertanty on the economuc outlook. Balanung
these two facts, the Board believes it 1s appropriate to increase the final
dividend for the year The Board has proposed a final ddend of 8 0
pence per share (2009 4 0 pence), bringing the full year dividend to

16 0 pence (2009 8 0 pence), a 100 0% increase  fhe final dividend
will be pard on 24 September 2010 to sharcholders on the register on
10 September 2010 Dividend cover, based on basic earnings per share,
1515 umes (2009 2 2 times)

Balance sheet and cash flow

The Group had net assets of £71 2m (2009 £67 2m) at the end of
the year, an increase of £4 Om since 2 May 2009 The cash generative
nature of the business 1n the year has been one of the strengths of the
Group, with free cash flow of £32 Om generated in the period (2009
an outflow of £12 1m)

Cash flow

2010 2009

£m £m

Trading profit 341 228
Depreciation and cther 186 205
non-cash tems
Exceptional tems (17 {12)
{Increase)/Decrease in stock 15 27
{Increase)/Decrease in working capital 58 (18 6}
Cash generated from operatons 58.3 26.2
Net interest paid {6 8} 55)
Corporation tax paid 99 (12.2)
Net caprtal expenditure 9 6} (20 6)
Free cash flow 320 (12.1}
Dividends paid {81} (22 8)
Other 19 47
Movement in net debt 258 {39.6}
Opening net debt (97 1) (57.5)
Closing net debt (71 3) (97.1}

The Group's operating cash flow was positive at £58 3m (2009 £26 2m)
The increase was predominantly attributable to the improved profitabiity
Net capital expenditure was £9 6m (2009 £206m) This can be broken
down into the following pnincipal categones

2010 2009

£m Em

Core capital expenditure 10.1 120
Freehold properties - 43
Acquisitions of new businesses - 73
Proceeds from property disposals {0.5) 30
96 206

After the repayment of borrowings and payment of dividend, net debt
decreased by £25 8m to £71 3m at the year end (2009 £97 Im)
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Group financial review continued

Property Gross bank borrowings at the balance sheet date were £75 5m (2009
The Group owns a significant property portfolio, most of which 1s used £108 3m} of which £62 2m 1s term based, with the balance of £13 3m
for trading purposes These are estimated by management to have a being drawn down from overdraft facthties The Group had further
market value of £139 5m at the year end (2009- £127 1m), compared undrawn, commutted facilities of £38 1m at the balance sheet date

to a net book value of £108 6m recorded wn the fi al stal t
ane Heo m eeorfecin fie finanaal stalements The current banking facilities provide approximately £110m of debt

Pensions capacity split between amorusing loans, revolving credit facilities and

At the year end, the Group had a deficit of £4 8m mn relation to defined overdrafis.in a muxture of Sterling and Euro currencies ‘The term of
benefit penston gements (2009 £2 4m) The approach used to these facilities are to July 2012 and mvolved combined arrangement
prepare the pension valuation 15 1n line with current market practice fees and legal costs of L1 5m Although paid in cash at the outset,
and mternational accounting standards Following the trienmial valuation these are being amortised over the hfe of the facility The facilities

m April 2008, a revised deficut funding schedule of around £0 3m per are accompanied by a number of covenants which are believed to be
annum for seven years was agreed with the Trustees With effect from appropnate in the current economuc climate The Group monttors
the } May 2010, the UK delined benefit scheme was dosed (o future actual and prospective compliance with these on a regular basis
accrual Thus has been completed after a peniod of ¢consultation with the
affected employees and will reduce the Group's exposure accordingly Outlook

The last year has scen a growth wn profit performance, despite
Current liguidity challenging trading conditions Looking forward, we expect the
At the year end the Group held cash balances of £8 3m (2009 £17 4m) consumer environment o reman difficult and have adapted our
n a2 combination of Sterlng, kuros and Polish Zlotys plans accordingly

Key performance indicators

We monitor our performance by reference to a himuted number of indicators The key ones are

2010 2008 2008
Store numbers The number of dores trading, UK & Rol 586 567 559
The Netherlands & Belgium 17 116 105
Store space Store gross area, including both selling and UK & Rol 4,808 4,632 4,471
(000 sq 1) arshouse space Space occupied by suble The Netherlands & Belgum 1,398 1,400 1,230
Like-for-hke sales Calculaied as ths year's net sales dmded by last years UK & Rol 34% (135%) {27%)
net sales for all stores that are at least 12 months old
atthe begunning of our financal year Siores dosed The Netherlands & Belguum  {1.0%} 27% 6 7%
during the year are excluded from both years
Noaccount ts taken of changes to store size or the
wntroducuon of third panty woncessions Sales frorm
insurance and house bulding contracts are supplied
through the stores and mchuded wn therr figures.
Gross profit % Gross profit as a percentage of net sales. UK & Rol 62.0% 62 1% 62 8%
The Netherlands & Belgum  57.8% 57 7% 56 9%
Undertying operating  Operating profit, excluding exceptional verns, UK & Rof 6.2% 40% 12 8%
profit % 3 a percentage of net sales The Netherlands & Belgum  10.8%  102%  102%
Net debt {£m) The Groups overall net debt posiion at year vnd. 714 97 1 575

Carpetright pic Annual report and accounts 2010



Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board has a policy of continuous identification and review of key business risks
and oversees the development of processes to ensure that these risks are managed
appropriately. In the day-to-day operation of our businesses and the development of
the Group, both in existing and new markets, we face risks and uncertainties, some

of which are unique to the sector in which we operate. The risk factors addressed
below are those which we believe could adversely affect us, potentially impacting
the operations, revenue, profit, cash flow or assets of the Group. Additional risks
and uncertainties currently unknown to us, or which we currently believe are
immaterial, may also have an adverse affect on the Group.

We use our risk management process to identify, monitor, evaluate and escalate
such issues as they emerge, enabling the Board to take appropriate action wherever

possible in order to control them.

Economic and market conditions

The economy 1s a major mfluence on consumer spending with trends
m housing transactions, consumer confidence, morigage approvals,
consumer debt levels and interest rates impacting consumer demand
for discretionary spending on the home Uncertainty surrounding
current econommuc conditions present a difficult trading outlook
across our sector We remain commutied to the measures
implemented to date, to ensure the Group 15 approprately

managed in this environment

Business strategy development and implementation
If the Board adopts the wrong business strategy or does not implement
its strategies effectively the business may suffer The Board needs to
understand and properly manage strategic risk in order to dehver
long-term growth for the benefit of all Carpetright’s shareholders

the Board holds an annuat strategy review day and monitors
agreed actions throughout the year

Employee nsk
Carpetnght’ businesses depend on a high level of input from all levels
of staff The emiployee risks are sphit between

« Management Risk - The Group relies on key personnel including
the Executive Directors, Sermor Managers and Store Managers
Procedures are i place to identify and retain key personnel and the
Board regularly reviews succession planning for seruor roles

«+ Customner Service Risk — Carpetnight customers expect and receive
a gh level of customer service The Group employs close to 4,000
staff, mostly based 1n stores, and uses the services of over 2,000
independent carpet fitters The Group continues to ensure that all
staff are properly recruited, trained and rewarded so that hugh levels
of customer service are mantamed.

Entening new markets

Expansion it additional Furopean countnes provides the opportunity
for substantial long-term growth and economuc returns for shareholders
Thus represents a good opportunty for the Group but exposes it to new
cultural and regulatory nsks Failure to 1dentify, conduct appropriate due
dihgence and appropnately integrate acquistiions, particularty in

new geographical markets, could have an adverse impact on the Group
The Group only enters new markets where the Board believes the
potential long-term growth and returns ottwergh the nsks

Cost inflation

I'he location of the principal carpet manufacturers in Furope means
the Group 15 exposed to fluctuations m the value of the Euro The
Group seeks to mutigate this nisk by putting in place appropnate
arrangements with manufacturers and proactively managing its seling
prices lo maintain margins

There are a number of sigruficant cost pressures affecting all retailers
Many of these costs are growing by more than the rate of inflation,
putung continued pressure on operating margins The strategy of
introducing space for beds/concessions, moving to smaller stores
and driving benefits trom our supply chain and IT investments helps
mutigate some of the nsk.

Supply chain and business continuity

Carpetnight’s revenues and cash flows are dependent on the continued
operation of its cutting and distribution facihties Business continuity
plans have been docemented and arrangements made to mitigate
significant risks arstng

IT systems

Carpetnight 1s dependent upon the continued avalability and integnty
of its computer systems. The systems tmplemented within the UK &
Rol are more robust than those that were replaced and have improved
the overall controls over data integnity The central systems are
murrored 1n a separate location as part of a systems business contimuity
plan By using the expentence from the UK & Rol, similar system
developments are planned for the Luropean operation

Management of iquidity nsk and financing
Carpetnight 1s dependent on debt financing facilives to be avalable
at a commercially viable rate ' We have introduced robust processes
to ensure we eftecively manage workeng capital and maintain
ongoing measurement to ensure the Group can meet its finanang
requirernents and 15 comphant with bankang covenants

wWww carpetnght.ple.uk.
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Principal risks and
uncertainties continued

‘The Group's [reasury policy 15 intended 10 ensure that there are
adequate financial resources for the development and growth of

the business whilst financing its operations al the lownest cost and
minumsing foreign exchange and interest rate nsk. The objective 1s
to achieve this without operational disruption or recourse to complex
financial instruments

The strategy and pohcies are approved by the Board The Group does
not engage m speculative transactions The key hnancial nsks relate to
meeting debt repayments as they fall due, interest rate sk and hmted
foreign currency exposure

The Group’s term based borrowings are a direct result of the
acquusition of businesses in the UK and Furope and the strategic
investment 1 new systems and the warehouse and cutting facihty
The borrowings are denominated in Sterling and Euros The Group
anticipates that there wall be sufficient Eure cash flow to pay both

the mnterest on the Euro borrowings as well as the capital repayment
amounts due over the Iife of the underlying loan The Group fixes the
interest rate on at least 75% of term borrowings via interest rate swap
arrangements Lo provide interest cost certanty and reduce nsk.

Any current account deposts generated from the strong operational
cash tlows of the Group are invested in the currency in which they are
recerved unless there 1s a dear need for conversion During the year
the Group invested these deposits 1n a combination of overnight and
longer-term mvestment graded accounts arranged via the Group's
principal bankers 1n the countries in which it trades

Legislative and regulatory nsk

Whilst Carpetright’s industry 1s not regulated, Carpetright 1s always
mmdful of s legal and regulatory obhgations The Group's Legal
Director 15 responsible for identifymg prospective changes to laws

and regulations and to bring those charges to the appropriate forum
so that the emerging risk can be addressed Of particular note are nsks
relating to health and safety, competiion law and price promotion

In each case the Company has developed clear policies and guidelines
and, where necessary, a comphance programune to nutigate the risks

Carpetright pic Annual report and accounts 2010

Employees

The Group employs approximately 4,000
people and is proud of being regarded
as a responsible and respected employer.

Equal opportunities

The Board believes m creating throughout the Company a culture
that 15 free from discnimination and harassment and will not

permit or tolerate discnmunation 1n any form The Group operates

a whistleblowing hotline through a third-party pronder enabling
employees to raise matters of concern with the Company on a named,
or anonymous, basis The Company gives full and fair consideration
1o applications for employment when these are recerved from disabled
people and employs disabled people whenever switable vacancies arise
Should an employee become disabled while working for the Company,
efforts are made to continue therr employment and retraiming 1s
provided, i necessary

Training and development

Cur tramng and development programmes are focused on giving
our stafT the skalls they need to move up to new roles, enabling them
to develop their careers and ensuring that there 15 a pipeline of 1alent
within the Group

Employee engagement

There are a number of communication channels in place to help
people develop their knowledge of, and enhance thewr mvolvement
with, the Group These channels include staff surveys, the Group's
annual conference, management briefings, weekly briefings from the
Chairman and Chief Executive broadcast to stores and offices and
other less formal commumnications Additionally all annual results
and mterim management statements are made available to employees
through the intranet. Directors and senior management regularly
visit stores and discuss matters of current interest and concern

with employees

Employee share ownership

The Directors believe 1t 1s 1n the interests of both the Group and the
employees for staff to have an opportumty to mvest i the Company’s
shares and operates two all-employee share schemes, namely an All
Employee Share Ownership Plan and a Savings Related Share Option
Scheme Approximately 580 employees participate in these schemes




Corporate social responsibility

Our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy 1s designed to meet the long-term
expectations of our customers and other stakeholders and ensure the sustainable
development of our business, It is clear that protecting the environment and running
our business ethically makes good commercial sense and apart from improving

the environment for both our staff and our customers, will also help us to enhance
shareholder returns. Neil Page reports to the Board on CSR matters and co-ordinates
the group’s CSR policies and activities. He is supported by a team providing support
and advice to develop the business policies and approach.

Qur key measures withun this area are

Issae Indicator 2010 2009 Progress
Prowiding great service Complaints per £1m of sales 131 136 3 7% fewer complants
Developing commulted people % of employees with > 3 year service 35% 27% 29 6% improvement
1 staif retention
Creating a safe place to work and shop  Number of reportable acadents 15 11 A disappownung increase, although
this remains below the long-term
average of 31 pa
Respect for the environment Lnergy efficiency - kWh/m? 240.7 2492 3 4% less gas/electnaty used
of sales space
Energy eficiency - km/hire 336 335 03% mncreasen efficiency
of dehvery fleet
Recycling 1n tonnes 21 1,342 58 8% more polythene sheet
and cardboard recycled

More detailed information, notably performance data and future targets, 1 available i our full CSR Report available Lo view at www carpeinghtple uk

Over the last four years we have been developing and improving
policies to cover the following

Prowviding great service

Our aim 15 to provide outstanding custemer service by selling a
comprehensive range of flooring products at the keenest prices,
supported by excellent store staff and, where required, by organising
a high quality carpet fitting service

We have now equipped mobtle fitter training pods enabling us to
offer all of our recommended fitters access to the Flooring Industry
Trade Association (FITA) assessment and additional tramnmg
where required to meet FI1As exacung standards We are now
able to recommend over 2,600 registered fitters who have attamned
FITA qualifications, 536 of whom have attained the TITA fitung
qualification n the past 12 months

We commussioned consumer research looking at the service offering
n our stores and will conlinue to work on the findings over the next
12 menths increasing service traimng in our stores

Developtng committed people

We employ close to 4,000 people i stores, depots and offices
throughout the UK & Rof and Curope Our aims are to ensure
everyone has the nght skills and knowledge to do their jobs, to offer
our people a good range of incenuves and benefits and to value and
promote the diversity of our workforce

"lo ensure we understand our stafl’s expectations and fully take
advantage of their experiences and opimons, we have conducted
an employee survey in the UK & Rol and followed up the results
with a sertes of ‘Have Your Say’ workshops where staff have had
the opportunity to voice their concerns and contribute :deas
towards the continuing development of the Carpetnight brand
The outcome of these workshops is still being evaluated but

the business has already made significant changes as a result

of the employee feedback and this will be an ongoing part

of the company’ people agenda

Staff stability 15 important to us as a measure of employee loyalty
and satisfaction and we track retention rates conunually

Sourcing great products

We are commutted to buying great products from supphers who
operate 1n a responsible manner Our ams are to ensure suppliers are
subject to velung for sausfactory ethies and proceditres, 1o insist our
supply chain partners sign up to the Carpetnght ‘Codes of Conduct’
and to ensure we act 1n a responsible and ethrcal manner

All of our supphers have now signed up 1o comphance with our
Ethical and Envirommental policies We have additionally introduced
a timber policy to ensure all imber floor covering products are
manufactured from sustainable resources

www carpetright.plc.uk
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Corporate social responsibility continued

Creating a safe place to work and shop
We are commutted to achieving high standards of health and safety
1n all operational areas

We have reviewed our policies and procedures and implemented a
riew way of managing health and safety, particularly within our stores
There were 5 reportable acadents in the pertod (2009 11), the largest
proportion of which were manual handling refated

We remain commutted to eliminating all heavy manuat handhing from
our stores Wherever possible, each of our branches has a pedestrian
operated boom truck to unload and move carpet and vinyl deliveries
and where 1t has not been possible to provide a truck we have arranged
a senies of nearby ‘buddy’ branches o accept delivenies We have also
been involved 1n the design and development of a new Lifting device
to hft carpet onto roll stock stands and after successful trials have now
ordercd 200 of these devices to be delvered through 2010 - 2011

and anticipate ordering a further 200 the following year

Respect for the environment

We are commutted to taking steps to control and munirmuse any
damage our operations may cause 1o the environment through
manufacturing processes, transport, energy usage and packaging
In particular we are aware of the 1ssue of dimate change and we
want to understand and miummise our carbon emussions

We have now calculated the carbon footprint of our UK and
Republic of Treland operation and wall be 1n a position to publish
that information once the methodology and calculations have
been externally assured This information will be published

on the corporate website when avalable

We are particularly proud of our recycling record and have improved
this by almost 59% against the previous year All cardboard tubes and
sheet polythene wrapping 1s now returned to our central distribution
centre where it 1s compacted and sent for recychng This cardboard
and potythene was previously sent to landfill

Donations
Chartable donations of £6,647 (2009 £mil) were made during the year
No political donations were made (2009 £mil)
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Director’s report: Governance
Board of Directors

Lord Harms of Peckham (67)

Chairman and Chief Executive

Lord Harns 1s now n hus 53rd year i carpet retaihng and 1s one of
the best known names 1n the business He was Chairman and Chief
Executive of Harns Queensway plc from 1964 until the company
was taken over in 1988 Lord Harns 1s a Non-Executive Director of
Arsenal Holdings plc and Arsenal Football Club plc He was a Non-
Executive Director of Great Universal Stores plc for 18 years until
July 2004 and was a Non-Executive Director of Matalan Plc for two
years unti} January 2007

Chnstian Sollesse (51)

Managing Director, UK and Republic of Ireland

Christian Sollesse joined Carpetright 1n 1995 having worked for
many years in senior retall management roles in Harrs Queensway
and Harris Intertors Christian was appomted Sales Director 1 1997
with responsibility for sales and retail management In June 2005
Chnstian was appownted Managing Director, UK and Repubhic of
Ireland, takung responsibility for trading operations

Martin Hams (41)

Group Commercial Director

Martin Harris joined Carpetright in 1991, previously having been an
Executive Director of Harveys Furnishing Group Linited Martin
became Marketing Director in 1997, resigning to become a Non-
Executive Director in 1998 In November 2002 Martin resumed
Executive Director responsibihities as Buying Director and was
appointed Commercial Director when he assumed responsibility
for Marketing in 2003 Martin took on responsibility for supply
chain and logistics n June 2005 and was responsible for the move
to Carpetright’s new central cutting and distribution centre and
offices in early 2008

Neil Page {47)

Group Finance Director

Neil Page joned Carpetright in July 2008 as Group Finance
Director Net began hus career with British Rail and Marks and
Spencer He joined Superdrug in 1991, holding a vaniety of finance
and operational positions before talung up the role of Finance and
IT Durector for AS Watson (Health & Beauty) UK Ltd 1n July 2002
He 15 an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants

Baroness Noakes (61}

Non-Executive Director

Baroness Noakes, a chartered accountant, joined the Board in 2001
Baroness Nozkes 1s a Non-Executive Director of Severn Trent plc
and a trustee of the Thomson-Reuters Founders Share Company
Previously she was with KPMG for 30 years and was the Senior
Non-Executive Director of the Bank of England and a Non-Executive
Durector of Hanson ple and ICI ple Baroness Noakes chairs the Audit
and Nonmunation Comirmuttees and 1s the Senor Independent Director

Simon Metcalf (67)-

Non-Executive Director

Simon Metcalf joined the Board n 2004 He 15 a chartered accountant
and worked 1n corporate finance as a director of County Bank and
1ts successor orgarusations for over 25 years, latterly as Vice Charrman
of Hawkpoint Partners He s currently a Non-Executive Director of
The Collinson Group, Professional Travel Insurance Limited and a
number of other private compames He is a trustee of the Bankside
Gallery Simon chairs the Remuneration Comnuttee

Guy Weston (49)

Non-Executive Director

Guy Weston jomned the Board m 2005 Guy began his career asa
management tuter and business analyst before entering the food
and beverage industry, working for R Twimng & Co, Jacksons of
Piccadilly and The Ryvita Company Currently Guy 1s Chairman
of Heal’s PLC and Wittington Investments Ltd, a Director of the
Thromboesis Research Institute and a Trustee of the Garfield
Weston Foundation

Geoff Brady (56)

Non-Executive Director

Geoff Brady jowned the Board in March 2008 He has had a career of
over 35 years in the retall sector including Chuef Executive Officer of
Allied Carpets plc, Managing Dhrector of Daimler Chrysler Retail
UK and Commercral Director of Superdrug ple He was a Deputy
Chairman of Matalan Plc and a Non- Executive Director of Floors-2-
Go Plg, prior to both compantes’ return to private ownershup He s
currently Non-Executive Chairman of both Robert Dyas and Harvey
Jones Kitchens and a Non-Executive director of Saul D Harnson Plc

WWW catpetnghi.pic.uk
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Corporate governance

The Group recogruses the importance of high standards of corporate
governance, and 1s commutted to operating within an effective
corporate governance framework through the operation of Board
commuttees, internal procedures and Group policies Thas report, the
Audit Committee Report and the Directors’ Remuneration Report,
explain how the Company has apphed the pnnciples set out in the
UK Financial Reporting Counci’s 2008 Combined Code on
Corporate Governance {the Combined Code)

The Board

The Board consists of four Executive and four Non-Executive
Durectors, brief biographies of whom can be found on page 15
Geoff Brady, one of the Non-Executive Directors, has announced
his intention to stand down from the Board on 31 August 2010 A
search 1s currently underway to appoint a replacement There1sa
formal, ngorous and transparent procedure for the appontment
of new directors to the Board and this 1s descnibed 1n the secuon
concerming the Nomination Commuttee on page 17

Guy Weston and Chnistian Sollesse both retire from office, having
completed three years service since last being re-elected to the Board
and, bemng eligible, both offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcorming Annuat General Meeting { AGM’} Baroness Noakes
retires from office, having completed nine years service as a Non-
Executive Director, and offers herseif for re-election at the AGM

The Board believes that the current structure of the Board 1s of an
appropriate size and structure to manage the Group in an effective
and successful manner

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company play a key governance
role and bring an extra dimension to the Board’s deliberations The
Board has considered the independence of each Non-Executive
Director against the critenia specified in the Combined Code and
determined that each remains fully ndependent The Board in
particular considered the independence of Baroness Noakes, who
1s considered by the Board to be independent in character and
Judgment notwithstanding that she has served as a Director of

the Company for more than nine years from the date of her

first elecuon

Under the Company’s Articles of Association every Director will
subrmt humself or herself for re-electon every thurd year Addibonally,
under the Company's Articles of Association and 1n accordance with
the Combined Code, every Non-Executive Director who has served
as a Director for mne years or more 1s subject to annual re-election
as a Director

The posiion of Chairman 1s combined wath the role of Chuef Executive
The Board does not at present consider it necessary to separate the
two roles The Chairman 1s one of the leading figures 1n the industry
both 1n the UK and Europe and the Board believe that it 1s in
shareholders’ interests that he should be seen to take the leading
role in the Company’s aftairs He also has extensive hsted company
expenence at board level The Charrman was a member of the
Nonmunaton Commuttee dunng the year under review, and he
attends the Remuneration and Audit Commuttee meetings by
wnvitation The Board recogmses that with a combined Chairman
and Chuef Executave the role of the Semor Independent Director
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('SID’) 15 of enhanced importance In particular, the SID playsa
sigruficantt role in determining the Board agenda and Board appraisal
process and n ensuring that any 1ssues raised by the Non-Executive
Directors are fully dealt with Baroness Noakes has been the SID
since June 2004

A process of evaluation of the Board and its Audit and Remuneration
Commuttees has been undertaken The exercise to evaluate the
performance of the Board was led by the SID, and those of the Audit
and Remuneration Commttees was led by the chairmen of those
commuttees The results of these assessments have been considered
by the Board and confirmed the strength of leadership withun the
business and a sound governance framework

The Non-Executive Directors generally meet privately with the
Chairman and Chief Executive at least twice each year The Non-
Executive Directors meet, with no Executive Directors present,
al least once each year inter alia to review the performance of
the Chairman and Chief Executive

The full Board met six times dunng the year with full attendance
Six meetings are scheduled for the current year

The Board 1s responsible for setung the Group’s objectives and
policies, providing effective leadership and control and for approving
the Group strategy, budgets, business plans and major capital
expenditure It has responsibihty for the management, direction
and performance of the Group and 1s accountable to the Company’s
shareholders for the proper conduct of 1ts business The Board hasa
formal schedule of matters which sets out those matters requuing
Board approval and specifically reserved to it for decision Day-to-
day management 1s delegated to the Chief Executive and the
Executive Directors

Directors recerve monthly trading results, commentary, briefing
notes and reports for their consideration in advance of each Board
meeting, mcluding reports on the Group’s operations to ensure that
they remain briefed on the latest developments and are able to make
fully informed decisions

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and the Board has established a procedure whereby Directors
may take independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
In additton, such advice may include training 1n order to enable them
1o discharge thewr roles and responsibilities as 2 Director All new
Directors recerve an induction tadored to their particular requirements

Board committees

The Board has three Commuttees, each of which has written terms
of reference which are available on the Company’s corporate website
{www carpetnght plc uk)

The Board periodically reviews the membership of its Commuttees
to ensure that Commitiee membershup 15 refreshed The Companv
provides the Commuttees with sufficient resources to undertake their
duties The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to each Commuttee

The role of the Audit Commuttee, 1ts members and detals of how
1t carned out its duties are set out m the Audit Commuttee report
on page 19




The role of the Remuneration Commuttee, its members and
details of how 1t carmned out 1ts duties are set out in the Directors’
remuneratton report on pages 20 to 24

The Nomunation Commuttee 15 chaired by Baroness Noakes and 1ts
other members are Lord Harns and Guy Weston The Commuttee
met three umes during the year with full attendance

The role of the Nomnation Commuttee 1s to identify and nominate
candidates for the approval of the Board, to fill vacancies and make
recornmendations to the Board on Board composition and balance
External search consultants assist in the search process for all

new Board appointees The Commuttee considers the skills

and competencies of the existing Directors when drawing up

a speafication for new appointments and 1s ensuring that the
development needs of Executive Directors and other semor
managers are addressed appropnately

The Commmttee also considers whether Directors due to retire by
rotation should be recommended for re-appointment, and whether
the appointment of Non-Executive Directors reaching the end of
their three-year term should be renewed Commuttee members do
not vote on thewr own reappointment

Risk Management and Intemal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness In order to fulfil
this responsibility and safeguard shareholder investment and the
Company's and the Group’s assets, the Directors have established
an orgamsational framework with clear operational procedures,
hines of responsibility and delegated authonty which has operated
throughout the year under review and up to the date of approval
of the Annual Report and Financral Statements

The system of internal control 1s designed to 1dentify, evaluate and
manage significant nsks associated with the achievement of the
Group’s objectives Because of the imitations inherent in any system
of internal control, this system 15 designed to meet the Group's
particular needs and the nsks to which i1t 1s exposed rather than
ehimnate risk altogether Consequently 1t can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board has reviewed the Group's systems of mternal controls
ncluding financial, operatienal and compliance controls as well as
nisk management, and 1s sanistied that these accord wath the gudance
on internal controls set out in Imernal Control Revised Gudance
for Directors on the Combined Code, 1ssued by the Financial
Reporting Council in Cctober 2605

The day-to-day responsibility for managing nsk and the mantenance
of the Group’s system of internal control is collectively assumed by
the Executive Directors The Board has established an Executive
Directors’ Group ("EDs Group’) compnising the Executive Drectors
and semor managers who review key nisk and control 1ssues The
EDs Group meets quarterly

Several key processes exast within the Group to ensure a sound
system of internal control which 1s described below

Identification of business nsks

The Board 1s responsible for identifying the major business risks
faced by the Group, and determimng a suitable response The EDs
Group 1dentifies and assesses risks to the Group’s medium-term
strategy The EDs Group directs both the UK and European Risk
Management Committees to address each of the identified risks,
formulate a mingation strategy and assess the hkely impact of such
nisk occurring, and provides regular reports to the Audit Commuttee

The UK Risk Management Commuttee and the Evuropean Risk
Management Commuttee each compnse a small number of the
senior management team as regular members, who are able to call
on the expertise of other managers as required Each Commuttee,
which meets at least quarterly, regularly reviews the nsk management
and control process within its temtory and considers the response
to the significant nsks which have been 1dentified by management
and others and momitors the maintenance of a control environiment
directed towards the proper management of nsk. Both risk
management committees report to the EDs Group

Additionally there are working groups covening Corporate
Responsibility, Stock Management and Business Continuity
and, in Europe, Health and Safety These report to the UK Rusk
Management Commuttee or the European Risk Management
Commuttee as appropriate

The principal nsks and uncertainties affecting the business are
set out on pages 11 and 12

Health and safety

Enforcing the health and safety policy 1s a hugh prionty for
management and fully descriptive manuals are available to all staff,
supported by a trainung programme for stores, distnbution centres
and the central support office Risk assessments are undertaken for
all procedures and safe systems of work devised for all procedures
involving physical risk. Failure to adhere to safe systems of work or
following unsafe working practices will be subject to review and, »f
necessary, disciplmary proceedings Health and safety 1ssues are
mcluded as part of the internal audit review of all premises

Internal audst
The internal audit function

» works to develop, improve and embed risk management tools
and processes within the business operations,

undertakes its work, both on central functions and in the field,
based on a risk assessment model,

ensures that business nsks are 1dentified, managed and regularly
reviewed by management at all levels of the Group and that
Directors are pertodically appraised of key nisks,

* provides the Audit Commuitee and the Board with objective
assurance on the control environment across the Group, and

mornutors adherence to the Group’s key pohctes and pnnciples

www carpetnght.pic.uk
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Corporate governance continued

Planning

The Group's planming process underpins the development of the
annual budget. The budget 1s reviewed and approved formally by
the Board Actual performance 1s reported on a monthly basis and
measured against the budget and the prior year and a detailed
explanation of significant variances 1s provided Key performance
indicators are monutored weekly

Control procedures

The Group has control procedures designed to provide a complete
and accurate record of financial transactions, to ensure correct
accounting and to rumimuse the possible exposure to fraudulent
transactions The Board believes that the measures taken, ncluding
physical controls, separation of duties and management reviews
provide suitable assurance Any 1ssues raised by the Group's auditors
or the internal audst function are fully reviewed and considered

Statement of Compliance

During the period ended 1 May 2010 the Company complied with
the provisions set out i section 1 of the Combined Code except
provisien A 2 1 as the roles of Chairman and Chuef Executive are
combined, an explanation for which 1s set out above The Board
does not at present consider it necessary to separate the two roles

Carpetright ptc Annual report and accounts 2010




Audit Committee report

The Audit Commuttee 1s appointed by the Board from the Non-
Executive Directors of the Company The terms of reference are
regularly reviewed by the Audit Comrmuttee and are then referred to
the Board for approval These are available at www carpetnght ple uk

The Audit Commuttee 1s chared by Baroness Noakes, who has recent
and relevant financial experience, and its other members are Simon
Metcalf and Geoff Brady, both of whom are independent Non-
Executive Directors The Commuttee met four tunes dunng the
year with full attendance

At the mvitation of the Commuttee, the Charman and Chref Executrve,
the Group Finance Director, the Head of Internal Audit and
representatives from the external auditors regularly attended
meetings Other Directors and semor managers also attend if
required There were also regular private meetings with the

external and internal auditors without management present

The Audit Comnuttee has an agenda linked to events in the Group’s
financial calendar Duning the peniod ended 1 May 2010, the Audit
Cormmittee discharged its respensibilities by

¢ reviewing the Group’s draft annual results announcement
and financial statements and the interim statement pnor to
Board approval and reviewing the external auditors detailed
reports thereon,

* reviewing the consistency of and any changes to the Group’s
accounting policies, the application of appropnate accounting
standards and methods used to account for sigruficant or
unusual transactions,

s reviewing the independence, abjectvity and effectiveness of the
external auditors and, on the basis of that review, recommending
to the Board their reappointment at the AGM,

« reviewing the Group’s Corporate and Social responsibility report,

« approving the audit fees paid to the external auditors and reviewng
the application of the policy on non-audit work performed by
them together with the non-audit fees payable to them,

» reviewing the external auditors’ plan for the audit of the Group’s
accounts, and approving the tenins of engagement for the audut,

» reviewing the process for ensunng that serior management confirm
that they have supphed the auditors with relevant audit informaton,

+ reviewing the internal audit plan, monitoring the delivery of that
plan during the year and reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal audit function,

s reviewing the work of the ED's Group, which oversees the
rdentification and management of the nsks to the business,
together with reports on the Group's systems of internal
control, and reporting the results of this review to the Board,

reviewing its terms of reference and effectiveness, and

reviewing the whistleblowing policy and relevant items
reported under that poliey

The Audit Commmuttee and Board place great emphasis

on the independence and objectivity of the Group’s auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, when performing their role in the
Group’s reporung to shareholders The external auditors report
to the Audit Commuttee annually on their independence from
the Company

The Audit Committee reviews ndependence, objectivaty and
performance of the auditors annually, inchuding the annual report on
the auditors produced by the Audit Inspection Unit of the Financial
Reporting Council On the basis of that review, the Audit Commuttee
recommends the reappointment of the auditors to the Board

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been auditors to the Company
since 2005 when they were appomted following a competitive tender

‘The Board has also adopted a formal palicy on the Company’s
relationshup with its auditor in respect of non-audit work. The
auditors may only provide such services provided that such adwvice
does not conflict with their statutory responsibilities and ethical
guidance The Audit Commuttee Chairman’s pre-approval 15 required
before the Company uses non-audit services that exceed financial
Limuts set out by that policy Details of the auditor’s remuneration
for audit work and non-audtt fees for the periods ended 1 May 2010
are disclosed tn note 3 to the Finanaial Statements

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilies 1n relation to the accounts
15 set out on pages 27 to 28 The Statement by the Auditors on their
responsibilitzes in respect of the accounts ts contained 1n their
report on page 67

The Chairman of the Audit Commattee wall be available at the
Annual General Meeting
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Directors’ remuneration report

This report 15 made by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Comrmuttee The first part of the report provides details
of the Remuneration Commuttee and remuneration pohcy The
second part provides details of the remuneration, pensions and share
plan mterests of the Directors for the 52 weeks ended 1 May 2010

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuttee 1s chaired by Stmon Metcalf and its
other members are Guy Weston and Geoff Brady, all of whom are
independent Non-Executive Directors and served throughout the
course of the year The Commuttee met four imes during the year
with full attendance

At the invitation of the Commuttee, the Chairman and Chief
Executive, Group Finance Director and Group Human Resources
Director regularly attend Commuittee meetings The Commuttee
considers their views when reviewing the remuneration of the
Executive Directors and Semor Executives They are not involved
m discussions concerning their own remuneration

The responsibilities of the Commuttee include

¢ deternmuning and agreeing with the Board the broad remuneration
pohcy far the Chatrman, Executive Directors and the Semior
Executives,

* setting individual remuneration arrangements for the Chairman
and Executive Directors,

* recommending and monitoring the level and structure of
remuneration for those members of senior management
within the scope of the Comnuttee, and

= approving the service agreements of each Executive Director,
including termination arrangements

The Commuttee’s terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website {(www carpetright ple uk)

The Commuttee 1s authonsed by the Board to appomnt external advisers
1f 1t considers thus beneficial Over the course of the year, the
Committee was advised by the Hay Group and Hewtt New

Bridge Street The Commuttee's advisers attended one of the four
Committee meetings and recewved copies of the relevant papers for
all meetings Neither Hay nor Hewntt New Bridge Street provided
other services to the Company Hay Group and Hewitt New

Bridge Street are signatories to the Code of Conduct for
Remuneration Adwisers

Remuneration policy

The Commuttee’s policy 1s to provide remuneration packages for the
Executive Dhrectors which include an appropriate balance between
the fixed and vanable elements of pay, and which reflect thewr
responsibiities relative to the size and nature of the busimess Itis
committed to ensunng the management teams are rewarded for
delivering the Company’s growth plans and long-term shareholder
value The Commnuttee aims to set levels of fixed pay that are
competitive within the market within whuch 1t competes for talent
and short- and long-term imcentive opportunity at a level thatis
sufficient to motivate Executives to achieve the Company’s short-
and long-term goals without encouraging inappropriate behaviours

Carpetright plc Annual report and accounts 2010

Currently, for on-target performance, approximately half of total
remuneration 15 fixed and half 1s performance related

In Ine with the Association of British Insurers’ Guidelines on

Responsible Investment Dusclosure, the Committee will ensure

that the mcentive structure for Executive Directors and semor

management will not raise environmental, social or governance '
risks by inadvertently motivating irresponsible behaviour More '
generally, the Commuttee will ensure that the overall remuneration

policy does not encourage inappropriate operattonal nsk-taking

Remuneration review
Since the publication of fast year's report on Director’s remuneration,
the Commuttee has

* formally adopted the changes to the Long-Term Incentive Plan
whuch were approved by shareholders at the 2009 AGM,

held a review of the Remuneration Committee’s remuneration
adwvisers, i

conducted a review of the remuneration arrangements of the
Executtve Directors and semor Executives,

s determuned the bonus award for the 2010 financial year,

approved the salary increases for the Executive Directors
and other Senior Executives for 2010,

e reviewed 1ts own terms of reference, and

» conducted its annual evaluation of its own performance

Components of remuneration

The main remuneration components for the Executive Directors
comprise basic salary, incentive plans, penstons and benefits which
are set out below

1) Basic salary

Basic salary for each Executive Director is deternuned by the
Comrnuttee, taking account of the responsibiliies, performance
and expenence of the mdividual The Commuttee also reviews
other Senior Executives salaries taking stmilar factors into account
The Comnuttee considers salary levels in comparable compantes
by refernng to relevant pay data 1n the UK Retail Sector, in
companies with annual sales revenues of around £€500m and a
market capitalisation of avround £600m When reviewing the salanies
of the Executive Directors, the Commuttee also has regard to the
umpact on the cost of pension provision and pay and conditiens
elsewhere in the Group [n particular, the Commuttee takes account
of the level of salary increases awarded to other employees of the
Group when deading on increases for Executive Directors

The Executive Directors’ basic salartes were not increased in 2009, ‘
consistent with the level applied to management and central staff

The Commuttee approved the following basic salanes for the

Executive Directors in 2010

¢ Maruin Harns has been a hey contributor to the Board and in May
2008, he voluntanty dechined his approved salary increase and
consequently this represents hus first increase since May 2007
His basic salary was increased to £280,000 per annum (previously
£253,853 10 7% uplift)




Since his appointment 1n July 2008, Neil Page has delivered
an excellent contnibution to the Group and developed into

an extremely able Group Finance Director of a pubhcly Listed
company The Commuttee considers hus salary was no lenger
commensurate with his role and increased expentence and has
increased hus bastc salary to £280,000 per annum {previously
£260,000 7 7% uphft)

The basic salanes of Lord Harns and Chnstian Sollesse are
left unchanged at £481,832 per annum and £280,000 per
annum respectively

The above changes result in the total annual salary increase for
the Executive Directors being 3 6% The combined annual salary
mcrease for all central staff and management was 2 8%

i) Annual incentives

Executive Directors are eligible to receive an annual performance
bonus The bonus 15 a proportion of salary based on the achievement
of the annual budgeted profit The maxumum bonus opportunty for
Executive Derectors in the financial year yust ended was 120% of
basic salary, wath 70% of salary payable for on-target performance
The performance targets for 2010 were set by reference to budgeted
levels of profit before tax A bonus of 36 7% will be paid, whuch 1s

30 6% of the bonus opporturuty (2009 0%), reflecting the very
stretching nature of the profit performance targets set for 2010
Bonuses are paid in cash and do not form part of the Directors’
pensionable earmings

i) Long-term incentives

Executive Directors and other Senior Executives are eligible to
participate in the Company’s L ong-Term Incentive Plan (the
‘LTIP'} Awards under the LTIP consist of conditronal awards of
shares that vest three years after grant to the extent that performance
conditions have been met over a three year performance peniod
Awards under the LTIP are capped at 300% of salary per annum,
however, the Commuttee’s policy 1s to operate within a normal
maximum of 100% of salary per annum for awards to Executive
Directors The LTiP was not operated in 2007 or 2008 and, in order
to address this absence the 2009 award was made at 200% of salary
The Remuneration Comnuttee has deaided that award levels wall
revert to 100% of salary for 2010

Awards made in 2009 were subject to stretching performance
conditions requiring growth in the Company’s underlying Earmings
per Share (‘EPS’) before exceptional itemns EPS was chosen as 1t
provides strong alignment wath returns to shareholders None of
the 2009 awards vest if growth in EPS 15 less than 25% per annum
over the three financial years measured from the financal year
mmmediately preceding the year in which the award 1s granted For
growth of 25% per annum, 30% of the award vests and for growth
of 50% per annum, all of the award vests For growth between these
two peints between 30% and 100% vests on a shding scale

Following the remuneration review, the Commattee has deterrned
that the 2010 award wall agamn be subject to an EPS growth performance
condition based on growth in the Company’s underlying EPS before

exceptionahitems In light of the significantly hugher level of profit
achieved in 2010 than in 2009, which results in a hugher base point
from which EPS growth will be measured under the plan, the
Comuuttee has revised the EPS growth targets for the 2010 awards
None of the 2010 awards vest 1f growth 1n EPS 1s less than 17 5% per
annum over the three finanaal years measured from the financral
year immediately preceding the year in which the award 15 granted
For growth of 17 5% per annum, 25% of the award vests and for
growth of 35% per annum, all of the award vests For growth
between these two points between 25% and 100% vests on a shiding
scale In setting these revised targets the Committee satisfied itself
that the revised targets were at least as challenging in the current
environment as those set for the 2009 awards and has reduced the
threshold award down to 25% from 30% reflecting current market
and best practice

‘The Chairman and Chief Executive voluntarily declined an award
under the plan for 2009 and has indicated he wall do so again in
2010 Tt1s the Company's current pohcy that awards under the
LTIP will be satisfied using shares purchased in the market

w) Pensions

For the 2010 Financial Year, Martin Harns and Christian Sollesse
were members of the Carpetnght plc Pension Plan, which s a
contributory defined benefit scheme The Company reviewed 1ts
pension policy duning the year and as a result closed the Plan to

all future accruals from 30 April 2010 As a result of this review,
Executive Directors are offered an allowance of 20% of theur base
salary to fund thewr own pension provision The individual ss able
to choose whether this allowance 1s paid to the Company’s defined
contribution Group Personal Pension Plan (*GPPP’} Martin Harris
now takes his allowance as a salary supplement Christian Sollesse
has spht hus allowance between a contribution to the GPPP scheme
and a salary supplement

During the year, Neil Page received an allowance of 20% of his base
salary which was paid 1n to the GPPP and this arrangement has
continued Lord Harris has been recerving a salary supplement
equivalent to the Company’s contrtbuttons to the Plan on his behalf
Dunng the year, this was £18,349 and this ceased on 30 Aprl 2010

v) Benefits
The Executive Directors are ehigible for car benefits, life assurance
and private medical cover

Shareholding guidelines

The Commuttee intends to introduce share ownership guidelines to
create greater alignment with the interests of shareholders and to be
consistent with one of the objectives of the incentive framework. The
Commuttee has proposed that all Executive Directors should build
up a shareholding in the Company over a five-year penod starting
from 2010 that 1s equal to their annual basic salary and maintain 1t
thereafter At the year end, Lord Harns, Martin Harns and Christian
Sollesse were all above this level Neil Page, who joined on 14 July
2008, held 9,318 shares and based on the year end share price of
868p, this represented 28 9% of his salary
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Performance graph
The graph below shows the TSR performance of an investment of £100 1n Carpetright plc shares over the last five years compared to an

equrvalent investent in the FTSE mid-250 Index and the FTSE 350 General Retatl Index, whuch the Directors beheve to be the most suitable
broad comparators

Total shareholder return
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Thus graph shows the value, by the 1 May 2010, of £100 mvested 1n Carpetright plc on 30 April 2005 compared with that of £100 invested
n the FTSE 250 Index or the FTSE 350 General Retatlers Index The other poimts plotted are the values at intervening financial year-ends

Service contracts

It 15 the Company’s policy to employ Executive Directors under contracts wath an indefimite term subject to termination by notice given

by esther party, normally of 12 months If the Company terminates employment without giving full notice to the Director, the Company
has the option to either

¢ pay damages calculated by reference to common law principles, induding an obhigation on the Director to mitigate loss, or

* to make a payment in lieu of notice calculated by reference to basic salary and benefits only Gther than in the case of Martin Harns, this

payment would be reduced or terminated 1if alternative employment was secured during the notice penod and there 15 a requirement to
matigate loss

The Executive Directors’ service contracts became effective on the following dates

Contratt Date Nvouce Penod
Lord Harns 20 November 2006 12 months
Martin Harnis 30 June 2003 12 months |
Neil Page 2 March 2009 12 months
Christian Sollesse 20 November 2006 12 months

External appointments

Executive Directors retain remuneration from outside non-Executive directorships Dunng the year Lord Harris warved his fees payable by
Arsenal Holdings plc and Arsenal Football Club ple, totalling £25.000 Martin Harris received £13,333 as a Non-Executive Director of Harns
Ventures Lirmited

Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors do not have service contracts They are appointed for an imitial three year pertod and in accordance with the Articles

of Association wiull submut him/herself for re-election every third year Every Non-Executive Director who has served as a Director for nine
years or more is subject to annual re-election

The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appomntment became effective on the following dates

Unexpired term at the

Appomntment date Date of Re-appotniment date of s report

Geoff Brady 1 March 2007 19 February 2010 2 months
Simon Metcalf 1 June 2004 24 June 2010 35 months
Baroness Noakes 1 February 2001 19 February 2010 7 months
Guy Weston 1 February 2005 17 January 2008 7 months
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The fees of the Non-Executive Dhrectors are deterrmuned by the Board 1t s the Board’s policy to set these fees according to the recommendations
made by the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director who make such recommendations with reference to external dataon
fee levels in siniar businesses and having taken account of the responsibiities of ndmdual Directors and ther expected annual time commutment
The Non-Executive Directors are not eligible for any of the Company’s vanable pay arrangements

The fees of the Non-Executive Directors were last reviewed 1n June 2010 As a result of this review the fees of the Non-Executive Directors
were unchanged

The following section provides details of the remuneration, pension and share plan interests of the Directors for the 52 week period
ended 1 May 2010 and has been audited

1) Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of the Directors for the year was a follows

Pension
Salary/Fees Bonus Supplement Benefits Total 2010 Total 2009
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Lord Harns 1,2 482 193 18 44 737 532
Martin Harns 254 102 - 33 389 285
Neil Page 3,4 260 149 - 27 436 231
Christian Sollesse 5 280 112 - 36 428 315
Geoff Brady 36 - - - 36 36
Simon Metcalf 41 - - - 41 41
Baroness Noakes 51 - - - 51 51
Guy Weston 36 - - - 36 36
Total 2010 1,440 556 18 140 2,154
Total 2009 6 1,706 - 8 148 1,872
Highest paid Directer
Lord Harrs recerves a salary suppl w1 e of p of £18,349

Nerl Page recerved a cash bonus of £45 000 on the first anruversary of Tns apposntment 1n liew of bonus arrangements from his previous employer
Neil Page s remuneration i 2009 reflects hus service from the date of hus appointment on 14 July 2008 to 2 May 2009

In addinon Chnstian Sollesse recerved a payment of £200,000 dunng the year from Harns Ventures Limited a <hareholder whose shares are included within Lord Hamns declared
shareholding, Thus was the final payment under this arrangement

Totals include payments to Dircctors who left the Board before the start of the financial year
7  Noemaluments were waived dunng the period.

[ I

-

u) Long-term incentive plans
The table below shows the conditional 2009 awards granted under this plan, which would be released if the Company achieves maximum vesting:

Share Prce
Maxamum atdate of First exercise Last exercese
Date of Grant Share Award Award Pence date date
Martin Harns 18 Sept 2009 59,480 853 Sept 2012 Mar 2013
Neil Page 18 Sept 2009 60,961 853 Sept 2012 Mar 2013
Chnistian Sollesse 18 Sept 2009 65,650 853 Sept 2012 Mar 2013

For the award made in Septemnber 2006, an absolute earmings per share (‘EPS’) performance and a relative total shareholder return (“TSR’)
performance against a peer group, over a three year pertod each deternuned one half of the award

Total Sharcholder Returns Earnmgy per Share
Peer Group Ranking Vested Award (% of salary) Annwalised performance Vested Award (% of salary)
50th percentile and below 0% Below RPI + 3% 0%
51st percentile 12% RPI + 3% 12%
75th percentile or greater 40% RPI + 5% 40%

Vesting of the TSR-based award achieved 26 4%, the EPS target was not achieved The following table shows the opuons whuch vested from
this award The awards were made based on a share price of £11 45

Value at
Number Lapsed Vested Vesung Date Gam
Crrgnally Awanded Number Dvumber £ [3
Lord Harms 31,580 23,243 8,337 70,323 70,239
Martin Harns 16,788 12,356 4,432 37,384 37,340
Christian Sollesse 17,117 12,599 4,518 38,109 38,064
www carpetnght ple uk
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

m) Sharesave options
At the end of the year, the Directors’ SAYE share options were as follows

Asat Granted Lapsed Asal Exerase pnce First last

2 May 2009 durng year duning year 1 May 2010 pence exercse date exerqse date

Lord Harns 5,491 - - 5,491 295 Apr2014 QOct 2014
Martin Harns 5,491 - - 5,491 295 Apr 2014 Qct 2014
Neil Page 5491 - - 5,491 2935 Apr2014 Qe 2014
Chnistian Sollesse 5.491 - - 5491 295 Apr 2014 Oct 2014

' Anoption of 5,491 shares was also granted to Mrs Caroline Sollesse, an employee of the Company

4

2 The market pnce of Carpetright shares was 868 pence on I May 2010 (2 May 2009 565 pence) Duning the period ended 1 May 2010, the shares of Carpetright ple traded between
a low of 553 pence and a lugh of 985 pence

v) Al Employee Share Qwnership Plan
Carpetright operates an AESOP under which staff may contribute up to £125 per month from pre-tax salary to purchase Carpetright shares
All of the Executive Directors participate 1n the AESOP, contributing £125 per month

v) Directors’ Pensions Benefits
Only the Executive Directors’ basic salaries are pensionable During the year, Martin Harris and Christian Sollesse were members of the
Carpetright plc Pension Plan, which 1s a defined benefit scheme (subject to a notional earnings cap as pubhshed by HMRC)

Details of pensions earned by the Executive Directors are shown below:

Accrued Pension Transfer Value
Pension Increase tn Incrtase in pension Cost to the Plan of the Inkrease 1n transfer value
accrucd at accrued pension dunng the vear pet of INCrease 10 pension n Asat Asat net of Directors
1 May 2010 during the vear wdlation ™ excess of contnbutions 1 My 20194 2 May 2009 contnbabons &
£000 pa £000 pa 000 £000 £00¢ £000 £000
Lord Harnis ¢ 28 1 1 - 524 517 7
M ] Harns 16 3 3 31 203 153 14
C G Sollesse 34 3 4 59 594 491 97

1 The cost to the Plan of the increase represents the incremental value to the Director of hus service during the period calalated on service 16 30 April 2010 It 15 based on the increase
m accrued pension net of inflation after deducung the Director s contnbutian

2 The total change it value mcudes the effects of luctuanons in the transfer vatue due to factors beyond the control of the Company and the Directors, such as stock market
movements [t 15 calculated after deducting Directors contributians

3 Lord Harns has been m receipt of pension since September 2007
4 The transfer value basts was changed dunng the year

On 30 Apnil 2010 the Carpetnight ple pension plan closed 1o future accrual
Emplaoyer contrbutions of £52,000 (2009 £39,000) were made to the defined contnibution scheme in refation to Neil Page's service duning the year

Shareholder Approval

A resolution to approve the Remuneration Report 1s being proposed at the Annual General Meeting The Chairman of the Remuneration
Commuttee will be available at the Annual General Meeting

By order of the Board

Simon Metcalf
Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee
28 June 2010
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Other information

Directors’ Interests
The beneficial mterests of the Directors and their inmediate families in the ordinary shares of the Company are set out below

1 May2010 2 May 2009
Lord Harns 12,567,874 12,649,321
Marun Harns 3,964,447 3,939,809
Neil Page 9,318 6,077
Chnistian Sollesse 42,396 39,312
Geoff Brady 1,000 1,000
Sumon Metcall 2,000 2,000
Baroness Noakes 32,225 32,225
Guy Weston 12,000 12,000

In addinon, Lord Harns has a non-beneficial interest in 229,514 shares (2009 209,514) 139,000 of these shares are included wathun Martin
Harrs's beneficial interests The Executive Directors have an indirect interest m 17,869 shares held n trust under the Long-Term Incentive
Plan ("LTIP’} Save as disclosed 1n thus section, none of the Directors has any non-beneficial interests in the shares of the Company

Between 1 May 2010 and the date of this report 32 shares have been purchased for each of Lord Harrs and Christian Sollesse, and 33 shares
have been purchased for each of Martin Harns and Neu Page and under the Company’s All Employee Share Ownership Plan ('AESOP") In
addihion, 33 shares were purchased for Mrs Sollesse under the AESOP and these form part of Chnistian Sollesse’s benefictal holding There
have been no other changes to the above shareholdings

Save as disclosed herein, no Durector had 2 material interest in any contract or arrangement with the Company during the year, other than
through their respective service contracts

Details of transactions during the period with companies of which Lord Harns and/or Martin Harrts s a Director and/or in which Lord Harns
holds a matenal interest are noted below All of these transactions are on normal commercial terms

Lease and concession Lease and concession Supphes of goods/ services
agreement payments made agreement payments feceved RYTENE made
2010 2009 2010 2009 210 2009
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Clacton Property Investments Ltd 233 156 - - - -
Edinburgh Retad LLP 441 457 - - - -
Glenrothes Retaill LLP 187 187 - - - -
Greenock Retail Ltd 225 225 - - _ _
Harris Ventures Ltd 199 261 375 - 59 57
Hull Ut Trust 354 354 - - - -
Islandview Properties Lid 248 272 - - - -
Neath Retaill LLP 150 150 - - - -
Wick Retal Ltd 54 54 - - - _

As at 1 May 2010 the Group owed related parttes £mil (2009 £719)

Directors’ ndemnity arrangements
‘The Company has provided quahfying thurd-party indemmities for the benefit of each Director and former Director who held office during
the 2009/10 financial year The Company has also purchased and maintained Directors’ and Officers” Lability insurance throughout 2009/10

Creditors’ payment policy

While the Group does not follow any formal code or standard on payment practice, 1t agrees terms and conditions for its business transactions
when orders for goods and services are placed, and includes the refevant terms in contracts where appropriate These arrangements are adhered to
when making payments subject to the terms and conditions beutg met by suppliers The number of trade creditor days outstanding at the
peniod end for the Company was 57 days (2009 56 days)

Significant agreements - change of control

There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company following a takeover bid,
such as bank loan agreements and employee share plans None of these are deemed to be significant in terms of their potential impact on
the business of the Group as a whole except for

¢ aterm loan and revolving facihities agreement dated 19 March 2008, as amended and restated on both 25 September 2008 and 24 Apnil 2009
for term loans of €23 5 mithon and £33 millen and a revolving credit facility of £45 mullion, which provides that on a change of control all
lenders’ commitments are cancelled and all outstanding loans, together with accrued interest, will become immedzately due and payable,
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Other information continued

Significant agreements - change of control continued
» a €5 mullion term loan agreement dated 4 July 2005, subject to an addendum roll over agreement dated 6 June 2008, whuch provides that
if there 15 a substantial change in ownership the bank 1s entitled to accelerate repayment of the loan, and

» under the Company’s all-employee and discretionary share schemes, a change of control of the Company would normally be a vesting
event, facillitating the exercise or transfer of awards, subject to any relevant performance conditons beng satisfied

The Company does not have agreements with any Director or officer that would provide compensation for loss of office or employment resulung
from a takeover, except that provisions in the Company’s share plans may cause options and awards granted under such plans to vest on a takeover

There 15 no information that the Company would be requured to disclose about persons with whotn 1t has contractual or other arrangements
which are essential to the business of the Company

Share capital

Detals of the Company’s 1ssued share capital can be found in note 24 to the consohdated financial statements All of the Company's issued
ordinary shares are fully pard up and rank equally n all respects

The nghts and obligations attachung to the Company’s ordinary shares, in addition to those conferred on their holders by law, are contained in
the Company's Articles of Association, copies of which can be obtamed from Comparues House m the UK or by writing to the Company Secretary
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive the Company's report and accounts, to attend and speak at general meetings of the Company,
to appoint proxies and to exercise voting rights

There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares or on the exercise of voting rights attached to them, except (1) where the Company
has exercised its right to suspend their voting rights or to prohibat their transfer following the onussion of thewr holder or any person interested
1 them to provide the Company with information requested by it 1n accardance with Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006 or (1t} where their
holder 15 precluded from exercising voting nights by the FSA’s Lisung Rules or the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers

The Company 1s not aware of any agreements between shareholders that might result 1n the restriction of transfer or voting rights in relation
to the shares held by such shareholders

Shares acquired through Carpetright's employee share schemes rank equally with all other ordinary shares 1n 1ssue and have ne special nghts
The Trustee of the Company’s Employee Benefit Trust {(EBT") has waived 115 nghts to dividends on shares held by the EBT and does not
exercise its right to vote in respect of such shares Shares held in trust on behalf of participants in the All Employee Share Ownershup Plan are
voted by the Trustee as directed by the participants Details of share-based payments, including information regarding the shares held

by the EBT can be found n notes 24 and 25 to the financial statements on page 60 and 61

Substantial shareholdings

As at 28 Junc 2010, the Company has been notified of the following substantial shareholdings, other than those of the Directors, 1 the 1ssued
share capital of the Company

Number of ‘Total number Percentage
shares held of shares held of shazes held
The Olayan Group 10,099,000 15 0%
Harns Associates Inc 5,380,062 80%
Cascade Investments LLP 3,427,957 51%
Franklin Templeton Institutional, LLC 3,358,053 50%
Artisan Partners LP 3,358,107 50%
MF Global UK Ltd 3,276,576 49%
A R Bull, as a trustee jointly with
Lord Harris @ 48,000
Lord Harns and P | Saunders @ 59,000
C W Harris and P Scott 10,000
A H Palmer and E A O'Keeffe 1,750,000
D ] Stockwell and § L Hams 957,500 2,824,500 42%
A H Palmer and E A O'Keeffe ¥ 873,000 13%
1 These shares are also included tn Lord Harnis's non beneficial halding reported on page 25
2. These shares are also included m Marun Harns s beneficiat holdings and Lord Harms s non-beneficial holdings reported on page 25
3

Of these shares, 793,000 azre held on behalf of Martin Harns and so are also included tn his reported holding on page 25 These shares are in addinon to the shares held joindy
with Mr Bull The total nurmber of shares i1 which Ms Patmer and Mt O'Keeffe have a non beneficial interest 15 2,623 000 representing 3 9% of the 1ssued share capatal
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Investor relations é '

There 1s a formal investor relations programme based around the results presentations and mterim management statements All of the
Non-Executive Directors are available to attend meetings at shareholder request The Chairman and Executive Directors feed back any
investor comments to the Board Al Directors normally attend the Annual General Meeting and are avalable to answer any questions that
sharcholders may raise

All shareholders wall have at least 20 working days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting As required by the Code the Board will, at the
2010 Annual General Meeting, a2nnounce the proxy votes in favour of and aganst each resolution following a vote by a show of hands,
and the votes cast will be posted on the corporate website

Authority to purchase own shares

At the 2009 Annual General Meetng shareholders gave the Company renewed authority to purchase a maximum of 6,721,755 shares of one penny
each This resolution remains vahid until the date of this year’s Annual General Meeting. Asat 1 May 2010, the Directors had not used this authonity
The Company’s present intention 15 to cancel any shares acquired under such authonty, unless purchased to satisfy outstanding awards under
employee share incentive plans A resolubon seeking renewal of the authonty wall be proposed at this year's Annual General Meeting,

Annual General Meeting

The 2010 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 9 September 2010 at Harris House, Purfleet Bypass, Purfleet,
Essex RM19 1TT at 12 00 noon A full descniption of the business to be conducted at the meeting 15 set out 1n the separate Notice
of Annual General Meeting

The Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements m accordance
with apphcable law and regulations

UK company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared
the Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Unton The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company

and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Company and Group for that period

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are requured to

e select suitable accounting pelicies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

s state that the financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unuon, and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it 1s inapproprate to presume that the Group will continue 1n business,
n which case there should be supporting assumphions or qualifications as necessary

The Directors are responstble for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulanities

The Directors are responsible for the mamtenance and integrity of the Company’s websites (www carpetnght.co uk and www carpetnght ple.uk)
Legislation in the United Kingdom governng the preparation and dissemination of finanaial statements may daffer from legislation in
other jurisdicuons

Going concemn

The Directors confirm that, after reviewing expenditure commutments, expected cash flows and borrowing facilities, they have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue 1n operational exastence for the next finanaal year and the
foreseeable future For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the finanaial staternents Further detaids of the
Group's hquidity are detailed 1n the financial review on page 10

Disclosure of information to audrtors

Each of the Directors of the Company has confirmed that as far as they are aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the auditors
are unaware and that each Director has taken all steps to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company'’s auditors are aware of that information

www.carpetright.pic.uk
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Other information continued

ReSponsibility Statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

e the financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets,
habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as 2 whole, and

¢ the business review, which 1s incorporated into the Directors” report, includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the posiuen of the Company and the undertakungs included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a descnption
of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face

This Director’s Report, including the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities, has been approved by the Board

By order of the Board

Lord Harris
Chatrman and Chref Executive
28 June 2010
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Financial statements
Consolidated income statement

for 52 weeks ended 1 May 2010

Group Group g
S2weeksta  S2weeksio
1May 2010 2 May 2009
Notes £m £m g
Revenue 2 516 6 4828
Cost of sales (200 6) {187 )
Gross profit 2 3160 2958
Other operating mcome 24 18
Admunistration expenses (2902) (275 3}
Operating profit 2,3 282 23 °
Operating profit before exceptional items 2 341 228 E g
Exceptional ttems 2,5 59 (05 E g
Finance costs 6 (68} {72) g_%
Finance income 6 09 16 &
Profit before tax 223 167
Tax 7 (6 5) 49)
Profit for the financial period attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 158 118
Bastc earnings per share 9 235 176 g
[hluted earnings per share 9 235 176 g
All matenial items 1 the income statement anse from contimung operations g
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income N
s
for 52 weeks ended 1 May 2010 h
!
Group Group a_
52 weeks to 52 weeks 10
1 May 2010 2 May 2009
£m £m
Profit for the financial period 158 118
Actuanal loss on defined benefit pension scheme (30) {an
Fatr value loss in respect of cash flow hedges - (23)
Exchange gain/{loss) i respect of hedged equity investments (17) 72
Tax on components of other comprehensive iIncome 06 02
Other comprehensive income for the pentod {41) 40
Total comprehensive income for the period attnibutable to equity shareholders of the Company 117 158
The notes on pages 33 to 65 form an integral part of the financial statements
www carpetright.plc uk




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for 52 weeks ended 1 May 2010

Group
Capital
Share Treasury redemption  Translavon Hedging Retaned
Share capntal premuum shares reserve reserve reserve earmings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m m
At 3 May 2008 07 154 02 01 47 - 536 743
Total comprehensive income for the financial period - - - - 72 23 109 158
Purchase of own shares by Employee Share Trust - - 02) - - - - (02}
Transfer of Treasury shares to participants - - Q3 - - - @3y -
Share-based payments and related tax - - - - - - 01 01
Dividends paid to Group shareholders - - - - - - (228 (228)
At 2 May 2009 07 154 {01) 01 119 {23) 415 67 2
Total comprehensive income for the financial period - - - - (17} 11 123 117
Purchase of own shares by Employee Share Trust - - (02) - - - - (02)
Transfer of Treasury shares to participants - - 01 - - - (01} -
Share-based payments and related tax - - - - - - 06 06
Dividends paid to Group shareholders - - - - - (81) (81
At 1 May 2010 07 154 (02) 01 102 (12) 46 2 712
Company
Capital
Share Treasury redemption  Translation Hedging Retatned
Share caprtal premium shares reserve reserve TeseTve eamings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 3 May 2008 07 154 HIPA 01 25 - 538 724
Profit for the financial period - - - - - - 84 84
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme - - - - - - (11 (11
Farr value loss in respect of cash flow hedges - - - - - (23) - (23)
Exchange loss in respect of hedged equuty investments - - - - Gn - - (51)
Tax on components of other comprehensive income - - - - - - 02 02
Other comprehensive income for the pertod - - - - {(51) (23) (09) (83)
Total comprehensive income for the financial penod - - - - (51) 23) 75 01
Purchase of own shares by Employee Share Trust - - 02} - - - ~ (02}
Transfer of Treasury shares to participants - - 03 - - - (03) -
Share-based payments and related tax - - - - - - 01 01
Dividends paid 1o Group shareholders - - - - - - (228) (238)
At 2 May 2009 07 154 (01) 01 (26) {23) 384 19 6
Profit for the financial penod - - - - - - 19 19
Actuanat loss on defined benefit pension scheme - - - - - - (300 o
Fair value gain/{loss) n respect of cash flow hedges - - - - - 11 (11) -
Exchange gamn in respect of hedged equity investments - - - - 03 - - (UK
Tax on components of other comprehensive income - - - - - - 06 06
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - 03 11 (350 (21)
Total comprehensive income for the financial period - - - - 03 11 {16y (02
Purchase of own shares by Employee Share Trust - - (02) - - - - (02)
Transfer of Treasury shares to partiapants - - 01 - - - 01} -
Share-based payments and related tax - - - - - - 06 06
Dividends paid to Group shareholders - - - - - - 81} B
At 1 May 2010 a7 154 Q2) g1 (23} (12) 292 417

The notes on pages 33 to 65 form an integral part of the financial statements
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Consolidated balance sheet

as at 1 May 2010

Groap Group Company Company
010 2009 2010 2009
Notes im £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 10 672 712 161 162
Property, plant and equipment 11 1495 1647 978 1058
Investment property 12 261 253 77 75
Investment in subsidiary undertalangs 13 - - 364 391
Deferred tax assets 21 29 33 - -
Trade and other receivables 15 14 13 512 617
Total non-current assets 247 1 2658 2092 2303
Current assets
Inventories 14 413 432 324 317
Trade and other receivables 15 381 344 31 262
Cash and cash equivalents 16 83 174 36 105
Total current assets 877 950 67 1 68 4
Total assets 3348 3608 276 3 298 7
Liabilitres
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 17 (114 2) (1108) (95 8) (88 5)
Obligations under finance leases 18 L) 09 01) 09
Borrowings and overdrafts 19 (222) (17 1) (17 9) (55)
Current tax Liabilities (56) (57) 47 (42)
Total current liabilities (1421) (134 5) (118 5) (99 2)
Non-current hiabilities
Trade and other payables 17 (342) (315) (43 9) (356)
Obhgations under finance leases 18 29 (30 (19 20)
Borrowings 19 (53 3) 912) (42 0) {88 5)
Denvative financial mstruments 23 () {11) 23) an (23)
Provisions for Liabilities and charges 20 (18) (08 (18) (08)
Deferred tax Liabihities 21 (234) 279) (13 6) (18 3)
Retirement benefit cbhigations 22(1)(a) (2) (48) (24) (48) (24)
Total non-current babibities {1215) {159 1} {116 1} (149 9)
Total liabilities (263 6) (293 6} (234 6} (249 1)
Net assets 712 672 417 496
Equity
Share capitat 24 07 07 07 07
Share premium 24 154 154 154 154
Treasury shares 24 {02) [(133] {02) (01)
Other reserves 553 512 258 336
Total equuty attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 712 672 417 496

The notes on pages 33 to 65 form an integral part of the financial statements
These financial statements from pages 29 to 65 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2010 and were signeg on 1ts behalf by
Lord Hams of Peckham Neil Pag

Drrectors /\/
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Consolidated statement of cash flow

for 52 weeks ended 1 May 2010

Group Group Company Company
52 weeks to 52 weeksto 52 weeks to 52 weehsto
1 May 2010 2 May 2009 1 May 2010 2 Mav 2004
Notes Lo £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 223 167 60 114
Adjusted for
Depreciation and amortisation 2,3 191 204 153 162
(Profit)/loss on property disposals 07 (18) 07 (18)
Exceptional non-cash items 35 11 127 11
Other non-cash items 05) 01 {05) 01
Net finance costs 6 59 56 56 47
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 510 421 398 317
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 15 27 (08} {06)
(Increase)/decrease 1n trade and other receivables (38) 09) {48) {94)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 96 {17 7) 11.9 {139
Cash generated by operations 583 262 461 78
Interest paid {70) (62) (65) (55)
Corporation taxes paid {99) (122) (75) (83)
Net cash generated from operating activities 414 78 32.1 (60)
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds on disposal of propertv, plant and equipment and investment property 05 30 05 30
Purchases of intangible assets 1y 20) (1.1) (20)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and investment property 90) (14 3) (74) (93)
Acquisition of bustnesses net of cash acquired - (73) - {15)
Interest recerved 02 07 - 07
Net cash used in investing activities (94) {199) (80) {91}
Cash flows from financing activities
Purchase of Treasury shares by Employee Share Trust (02) (02) (02) 02)
Repayment of borrowings {43 6} (205} (35.5) 133)
New loans advanced 27 720 - 690
Inter-company loans - - 5.1 -
Repayment of obhigations under finance leases {09) (0 8) (09) 0 8)
Dividends paid to Group shareholders 8 (81) (228) 81) (22 8)
Net cash used in financing actvities {50 1) 277 (39 6) 319
Net increase/{decrease) 1n cash and cash equivalents in the period (181) 156 (155) 168
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the period 130 (z2) 105 (33
Exchange differences 0t 04) (04} (10}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 16,29 (50) 130 {54) 105

The notes on pages 33 to 65 form an integral part of the financial statements

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivatents are reported net of overdrafts repayable on demand. Overdrafts are

excluded from the defimtion of cash and cash equivalents disclosed in the balance sheet
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Notes to the accounts

1 Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below These policies have
been consistently appled to all the years presented unless otherwise stated

MONIGAG

Basis of preparation
The financial statemnents of the Group are made up to the Saturday nearest t0 30 Apnl The financial year for 2010 represents the 52 weeks
ended 1 May 2010 The comparative financial year for 2009 was 52 weeks ended 2 May 2009

The financial statements have been prepared m: accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) and International
Finanaial Reporting Interpretations Comnnuttee (IFRIC) mterpretations endorsed by the European Union, together with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 apphcable to companies reporting under IFRS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for denvative financial instruments, pension
assets and habiities and share-based payments which are measured at fair value The principal accounting pohicies set out below have been
conststently applied to all penieds presented unless otherwise stated

MD|AD) SSICIENY
podas £330

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the Company and its subsidiary undertakings The acquisiion of subsidianes 1s accounted
for using the purchase method The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of in the peried are included 1n1 the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal respectively

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between Group compames are eltminated. Accounting
policies of substdiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

FIUTLIAOLY
Quoded sr0aaq

Changes to accounting standards
The following new standards and amendments to standards, which are mandatory for the first time 1n the financial year beginning
3 May 2009, are relevant for the Group

IAS 1 (revised) Presentation of financal statements  Requires non-owner changes in equity to be shown in etther one performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or two statements (the
mcome statement and the statement of comprehensive mcome) The Group
has elected to present two statements Qwner changes 1n equuty are required
to be shown 1n a statement of changes tn equity

IFRS 2 (amendment) Share-based payments - vesung Clanfies the vesting conditions that are service condiions and performance

conditions and cancellations conditions only Other features that are not vesting condittons are required to
be included in the grant date far value This has had no matenal impact on the
results presented

SUOWES RIoUBUL

IFRS 8 Operating segments IFRS 8 replaces IAS 14 *Segment reporting’ It requires a ‘management approach’
under which segmental information 15 presented on the same basis as that used
for internal reporting purposes The Chief Operating deciston maker, who ts
responsible for resource allocation and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors Asa result of IFRS 8
The Netherlands 1s being shown as a separate operating segment with the
remainder of what was previously reported as “Rest of Europe’ being included
under ‘all other segments’

Where applicable comparative amounts have been restated to conform with current presentation

The following amendment to a standard which 1s mandatory for the first time m the financial year beginning 3 May 2009, 1s relevant but
was already applied by the Group

I1AS 23, ‘Borrowng costs (revised)’

The following amendments to standards and IFRIC wnterpretations, which are mandatery for the first ime 1n the financiat year beginning
3 May 2009, are either not currently relevant or materal for the Group

IAS 32 (amendment), ‘Puttable financial instruments and obligations ansing on hqudation’,

IAS 39 (amendment), ‘Financial instruments Recognitien and measurement’,

IAS 39 and IFRS 7 (amendment), ‘Reclassification of financial assets’,

IFRIC 13, *Customer loyalty programmes’,

IFRIC 14, *1AS 19 The hinut on a defined benefit asset, mumimum funding requirements and their interaction’, and
IFRIC 15, *Agreements for the construction of real estate’

www carpetright.plc uk




Notes to the accounts continued

1 Pnncipal accounting policies continued

Exchange differences

The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds sterhing, which 1s the Company's functional and presentational currency
Transactions i foreign currencies, which are those other than the funcuonal currency of an entity, are recorded at the opening rate for the

month in which the transaction occurs which 1s used as a reasonable approximation to the rate at the transaction date Monetary assets and
lhabilities denominated 1n foreign currency are translated at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date Resulting exchange gains or losses are
recogmised in the income statement for the period except where they are part of a net foreign investment hedge when they are recogrused in equity

On consohdation the assets and habilities of the Group’s foreign aperations are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date Income and expenses of foreign operations are translated at the average rate duning the penod Dufferences on translation are recogmsed
as a separate component of equity On disposal of a foreign operation the cumnulative exchange differences for that operation are recogrused in
the ncome statement as part of the profit or loss on disposal

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilties of that operation
and are translated at the rate ruling at the balance sheet date

Segment reporting

Segmental information s presented using a ‘management approach’ on the same basis as that used for internal reporting to the Chuef
Operating dectsion maker The Chief Operating decision maker, who 15 responsible for resource allocation and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been 1dentified as the Board of Drrectors

Revenue

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration recerved or recevable for the provision of goods and services to customers outside
the Group net of returns, sales allowances and value added and other sales based taxes Revenue from goods and services is recognised at the
pownt the Group fulfils its commercial obligations to the customer, the revenue and costs in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably
and collectabihty 1s reasonably assured

Share-based payments

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees The fair value of the employee services received m exchange for
the grant of options 1s recogmised as an expense and 1s calculated using Black-Scholes and Monte-Carlo models The value of the charge is
adjusted to reflect expected and actual levels of options vesting The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period s determned by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any service and performance conditions that are included 1n the
assumptions about the number of options which are expected to become exercisable

At each balance sheet date the Group revises its estimates of the number of options which are expected to become exercisable It recognuses the
impact of the revision of orginal estimates, if any, 1n the income statement and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the vesting penod.

Imparment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwall, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment  Assets
that are subject to amorusation are reviewed for indications of impairment at each balance sheet date 1f there 18 an indication of impawrment
the recoverable amount of either the asset or the cash-generating urt to which 1t belongs 1s estunated Cash-generating umts are used where
an individual asset does not generate cash flows which are independent of other assets The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset 1s the
hugher of 1ts fair value less costs to sell and 1ts value mn use Value in use 15 the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived
from the asset or cash-generating unit

Anmpairment loss 1s recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffer an impairment are reviewed for posstble reversal of impairment at each reporting date

Other operating income

Rental incorne earned on mvestment property 1s recogmsed, in other operating income, tn accordance with the substance of the relevant
rental agreements

Profits or losses on the disposal of property, plant and equipment represent the difference between the net proceeds and the net carrying
value at the date of sale Disposals are accounted for when there has been an unconditional exchange of contracts except where payment
or completion 1s expected to occur significantly after exchange

Carpetnght plc Anfuad report and accounts 2010




Exceptional items
Profits/losses on property disposals and non-recurring transactions which are material by virtue of their size or inaidence such as major
reorgamsation costs and impatrments are disclosed as exceptional items

Tax
Current tax habtlities are measured at the amount expected to be paid, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date 1n the countries where the Company's subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income

Deferred tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and habilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes 1s accounted for using the balance sheet habiity method Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recogrused for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recogrused to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised

Such assets and hiabilities are not recogmised 1f the temporary difference anses from goodwall or from the mitial recognition (other thanina
business combination} of other assets and Liabalities 1n a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit Deferred
tax is calculated at the rates of tax that are expected to apply when the asset or lability 15 settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, and 1s not discounted

Tax 15 charged or credited directly to equuty 1f 1t relates to items that are credited or charged 10 equity, otherwise 1t 1s recognised in the
income statement

Dividends
Dividend distrtbution to the Company’s shareholders 1s recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders or, in the case of interrm dvidends, paid

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired
entity Goodwll 1s not amortised, but 15 reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment 1s recognised immediately in the income
statement and 15 not subsequently reversed On disposal of a subsidiary the attnibutable amount of goodwill 1s included in the determination
of the profit or loss on dispasal

Other intangible assets
Purchased brand names and other intangible assets are capitahsed at cost Acquired software licences and software development costs
are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bning to use the speaific software

Amortisation of intangible assets 15 calculated to wnite off the cost of the asset, on a straight-line bass, over its expected useful hfe
The expected useful lives generally applicable are

Brands 20 years

Computer software 7 years

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s shown at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provisions for impairment 1o value

Deprecation 1s provided to write down the cost of property, plant and equipment, on a straight line basts, to their esimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives Freehold land 15 not depreaiated The estimated useful hives and residual values of assets are reviewed annually

The estimated useful lives by asset category that are generally applicable are-

Freehold and long leasehold buildings 50 years

Short leasehold buldings The shorter of the penod of the lease and the esttmated useful hfe
Fuxtures and fittings 7 to 15 years

Computers 510 7 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

Other plant and mactunery 7to 10 years

WWW carpetright.ple uk
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Notes to the accounts continued

1 Prnncipal accounting policies continued

Borrowing costs

Gross nterest costs incurred on the financing of major projects are capitalised until the time that they are avaulable for use Unless a spealfic
borrowing 1s taken out to finance the asset mterest 1s capitahsed using the weighted average interest rate of all non specific borrowings
Where a specific borrowing 1s taken out to finance the asset interest 15 capitalised at the rate applicable to that borrowing

Investment property

Property that 1s held to earn rental income and for capital appreciation 1s separately disclosed as investment property Investment property
15 carried at depreciated historical cost Depreciation rates and useful Iives of investment property are the same as those for Property, plant
and equipment

Leasing commitments

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of awnership to the Group
All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets used by the Group which have been funded through finance leases are capitahsed n fixed assets and the resulung lease obhgations are
mcluded in creditors The assets are depreciated over the shorter of their useful lives and the penod of the lease The interest element of the
rental obligations 1s charged to the income statement over the period of the lease and represents a constant proportion of the balance of
capital repayments outstanding

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease Premiums payable, rent
free pertods and contributions recervable on entening an operating lease are released to income on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Investment in subsidianes
The Company’s investment in substdiary undertakings 1s recogrused at cost and 1s accounted for net of impairment losses Income from

investments 1s recogrused in the income statement to the extent that post acquisition profits are recerved Distributions of pre-acquusition
profits reduce the cost of the investment

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value Net realtsable value 1s based on estimated selling preces

less further costs to be incurred to disposal Provisions are made for obsolescence, mark down and shrinkage based on actual losses, ageing
of iInventories and sales trends

Rebates receivable from supplers

Volume related rebates recervable from supplers are credited to the carrying value of the inventory to which they relate Where a rebate
agreement with a supplier covers more than one year, the rebates are recognised n the period in which they are earned

Trade receivables and payables

Trade recervables and payables are imuially recogiused at far value and subsequently adjusted to the amount recervable or payable
Recervables are stated net of a provision for impairment

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at bank, deposits repayable on demand and highly hquid investments For the
purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents also includes bank overdrafts which are shown within borrowings and
overdrafts in current habilities on the balance sheet

Bank loans and overdrafts

Barnk loans and overdrafts are initially recogrused at faur value less directly attnbutable transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate model

Provisions

A provision 1s recogrused where the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and tt ts probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obhgation Prowisions are calculated on a discounted basis when appropnate
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Retirement benefit obhigations

The Group operates defined benefit and defined contribution schemes and also participates 1n 2 multi-employer pension scheme in respect of its
employees in The Netherlands The assets and habilittes of all schemes are held separately from those of the Group The Group 15 unable to 1dentify
its share of the assets and habilities of the multi-employer scheme and, therefore, accounts for this scheme as a defined contnbution scheme

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit schemes 1s determined using the projected umit credit method, with actuanial
valuations bemng carried out at each balance sheet date The net retirement benefit oblhigation recogmsed in the balance sheet represents
the present value of the defined benefit obhgation less the fair value of the scheme assets at the balance sheet date

Actuarial gains and losses are recogrused 1n full, directly in equity 1n the period in which they occur and are presented in other
comprehensive income

Other income and expenses associated wath the defined benefit scheme are recognised in the income statement

The pension cost of defined contribution schemes 1s charged 1n the iIncome statement as incurred
Financial instruments

Denvative financial instruments
Dervative financial instruments (‘denivatives’) are used to manage risks arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
changes 1n interest rates In accordance with 1ts Treasury policy, the Group does not enter into denvatives for speculative purposes

Derivauves are stated at their fair value The fair value of interest rate contracts 1s the esumated amount that the Group would recerve
or pay to termunate them at the balance sheet date, talung into account prevailling interest rates

Changes 1n the fair value of denivatives which do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised m the income statement as they anse

Hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recogrused directly in other
comprehensive income and any ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately 1n the income statement When the asset or lability for the
hedged transaction 1s recognised in the balance sheet, the associated gain or loss on the hedging instrument previously recogmised in other
comprehensive income 15 tncluded in the carrying amount of the hedged asset or habahity Gamns or losses realised on cash flow hedges

are then recogmsed m the income statement in the same period as the hedged 1tem

Where the Group hedges net investments in foreign enuties through currency borrowings the gains or losses on the retranslation of the
borrowings are recogrised 1n equity

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging imstrument expires or 1s sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer quahfies for hedge
accounting At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument previously recogrused in equity 15 retawned 1n equuty untl the
hedged transaction occurs [fthe hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised 1n equity 1s then
transferred to the income statement.

Critical estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements under IFRS requires the Group to make estunates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts Estimates and judgements are contmually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Actual results may differ from
these estimates The estimates and assumptions which have a significant nsk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
and Liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below

Impairment of goodwall

The Group 1s required to test whether goodwll has suffered any impairment The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been
determned based on value in use calculations The use of this method requures the estimation of future cash flows expected to anse from
the continuing cperation of the cash-generating unit and the choice of a sustable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
Actual outcomes could vary sigiuficantly from these estimates

Impaiment of assets

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable When a review for umpairment ts conducted, the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit 1s determined based
on value 1n use calculations prepared on the basis of management’s assumptions and estimates
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Notes to the accounts continued

1 Pnncipal accounting policies continued

Critical estimates and judgments continued

Retirement benefits

The present value of the defined benefit iabihties recognised in the balance sheet1s dependent on the interest rates of high-quality corporate
bonds The net financing charge 1s dependent on both the interest rates of hugh-quality corporate bonds and the assumed investment returns
on scheme assets Other key assumptions for pension obligations, including mortahty rates, are based 1n part on current market conditions

New standards and interpretations
New standards and interpretations of existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group

At 1 May 2010 the following new standards and interpretauons and amendments to exasting standards, which are expected to be relevant
to the Group and have an impact on the financial statements, were 1ssued but not yet effective

® IFRS 3 (revised}, ‘Business combinations’, (effective for penods beginming on or after 1 July 2009) The revised standard harmonises
business combination accounting with US GAAP The standard will continue to apply the acquisition method to business combinations
but with certain sigmificant changes All payments to purchase a business will be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with some
contingent payments subsequently remeasured at fair value through income Goodwall and non-controlling interests may be calculated
on a gross or net basis All transaction costs will be expensed The Group will apply IFRS 3 (revised) prospectively to all business
combmations from 2 May 2010

* 1AS 27 (revised), ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’, {effective for peniods beginming on or after 1 July 2009) The revised
standard requires the effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests to be recorded m equuty 1f there 1s no change in control and
specifies the accounting when control1s lost The Group will apply IAS 27 (revised) prospectively to transactions with non-controlling
mterests from 2 May 2010

* 1AS 38 (amendment), ‘Intangible assets’, {effective for penods beginning on or after 1 July 2009) The amendment clarfies guidance
in measuring the fair value of an intangible asset acquired 1n a business combination and 1t permuts the grouping of intangsble assets
as a single asset if each asset has simular useful economuc hves The Group will apply IAS 38 (amendment) prospectively to business
combnations from 2 May 2010

* IFRS 5 (amendment), ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’, (effective for periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009) The amendment provides clanfication that IFRS 5 specifies the disclosures required in respect of non-current assets
(or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued operations It also clanifies that the general requirements of IAS 1
still apply The Group will apply IFRS 5 {amendment) prospectively from 2 May 2010

¢ [FRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, (effective for peniods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) The standard sets out how an entity shoutd
classify and measure financtal assets The Group will apply IFRS 9 when 1t becomes effective

¢ [FRIC 16, ‘Hedges of net investment 1n a foreign operation’, IFRIC 17, ‘Dustribution of non-cash assets to owners’ and IFRIC 18 “Transfer of
assets from customers’ all effective for peniods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and IFRIC 19 "Extinguishing financial habiliies with equity
tnstruments’, effective for penods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 wall be apphed by the Group when they become effective but are not
expected to have any unpact on the financial statements
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2 Segmental analysis

The operating segments have been determined based on reports reviewed by the Board that are used to make strategic decisions The Group's
business compnises only a retal business and the Board considers that business on the basis of the four geographic units of the UK and
Republic of Ireland (UK & Rol), The Netherlands, Belgium and Poland Neither Belgium nor Poland is significant enough to meet the
quantitative thresholds to require separate reporting and they have been aggregated as “All other segments’

The reportable operating segments derive thewr revenue primanly from the retail of floor coverings and beds Central costs are incurred
principally in the UK and are immaterial As such these costs are included within the UK & Rol segment. Sales between segments are
carned out at arm’s length

The segment informatton provided to the Board for the reportable segments for the 52 weeks ended | May 2010 1s as follows

52 weeks to 1 May 2010 52 weeks 1o 2 May 2009
The All other The Allother
UK & Rot Netherlands segments Group UK &Ral Netherlands segments Group
£m £m £m £m £ £m £m £m

Gross Revenue 428 8 655 259 5202 3973 636 251 486 0
Inter-segment revenue (3 6) - - (36) 32) - - (32)
Revenues from external customers 4252 655 259 5166 3941 636 251 482 8
Gross profit 2637 383 140 3160 2446 372 140 2958
Underlying operating profit 262 78 01 341 156 76 (04) 228
Exceptional items (2 4) - (35) 59 03 07 (0 1) (0 5)
Operating profit 238 78 {(34) 282 159 69 (05) 223
Finance income 09 - - 09 15 01 - 16
Inter-company mnterest - (01) 01 - 02 - (02) -
Finance costs {6 6) 01) {01) (68) {64) ©6) (02) (72)
Profit before tax 18t 76 (34) 223 112 64 (09) 167
Tax {43) (18) {0 4) (65) (18) 29 {02) 49)
Profit for the financial pertod 138 58 (38} 158 94 35 {11) 118
Segment Assets
Segment assets 244 3 781 331 3555 2560 872 291 3723
Inter-segment balances {114) 01 {92} (207) (105) 02) {0 8) (115)
Balance sheet total assets 2329 780 239 3348 2455 870 283 3508
Segment Liabilities
Segment liabihities (2329) (239) (27 5} (284 3) (248 7) (36 8) (196) (3051)
Inter-segment balances 52 56 99 207 - 42 73 15
Balance sheet total habilities (227 7) (183) (17 6} (263 6) (248 7) (32 6} (123) (293 6)
Other segmental items
Depreciation and amortisation 155 26 10 191 166 25 i3 204
Additions to non-current assets 65 07 09 81 143 15 07 165

Carpetright ple is domiciled in the UK. The Group’s revenue from external customers in the UK 1s £416 5m (2009 £381 8m) and the total
revenue from external customers from other countres 1s £100 1m (2009 £101 Om) The total of non-current assets {other than financal
mstruments and deferred tax assets) located in the UK 1s £175 8m (2009 £179 6m} and the total of those located 1n other countries 1s £89 Om
(2009 £94 4m)

Carpetright’s trade has historically shown no distinct pattern of seasonality with trade cycles more closely following economi¢ indicators such
as consumer confidence and mortgage approvals

.
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Notes to the accounts continued

3 Operating profit, analysis of costs by nature
Operating profit 1s stated after charging/(crediting)

Group Group
2010 2009
Notes £m £m
Rental income earned on investment property (26} (20
Cost of inventornes recognised as an expense w1 cost of sales 1756 167 8
Operating lease rentals
Miramum lease payments in respect of land and bwldmegs 930 918
Minimum lease payments in respect of plant and machinery 17 17
Sublease rental income (40) (54)
Auditors’ remuneration
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements 03 03
Staff costs 4 106 6 1016
Impairment of fixed assets 5
Charged in adminmistration expenses 32 09
Amortisation of intangible assets 10
Charged in admirustration expenses 36 35
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 11
Owned assets
Charged in cost of sales - 01
Charged 1n admimstration expenses 144 155
Under finance leases
Charged 1n cost of sales 07 07
Charged in adminustration expenses 01 01
Depreciation of investment property 12
Charged in admirstration expenses 03 04
Charged 1n other operating income - 01
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4 Staff costs
The average number of persons (full-time equivalents) employed by the Group (including Directors) was as follows
Group Group Company Company
010 2009 00 w009
Number Number Number Number
Stores 3,115 3,030 2,532 2,406
Central support office and warehouse 379 381 329 330
3,494 3411 2,861 2,736
The aggregate employment costs of employees and Directors were as follows
Groap Group Company Company
2010 2009 010 2009
Notes £m £m tm £m
Wages and salaries (including short-term employee benefits) 947 899 752 715
Social security costs 96 91 72 69
Post employment benefits
Defined benefit (02) 05 02) 05
Defined contnbution 20 20 08 06
Share-based payments 25 05 01 05 01
106 6 1016 835 796

Wages and salaries include short-term employee benefits as defined 1 IAS 19, with the exception of costs associated with the Group’s pension
schemes Post employment benefits include costs associated with the Group’s pension schemes with the exception of net 1nterest costs and the
actuanial gain on the defined benefit penston scheme The net £0 2m credit (2009 £0 5m cost) relating to the defined benefit pension schemes

are included i administration expenses Share-based payments comprise the cost of awards in respect of employee share schemes in

accordance with IFRS 2 These costs are explained 1n note 25

The employment costs of key management™ were as follows

Group Group

w010 2009

£m £m

Salaries (including short-term employee benefits) 39 29
Socral secunty costs 05 04
Post employment benefits 03 03
Share-based payments 05 01
52 37

| Key management comprises Group Directors and those sentor officers of the Group responsible for planrung, directing or contralling Group actmvities.

During the year the Executive Directors realised gains totalhng £0 2m on the vesting of the 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2009 £0 tm)
Details of these gains, share options and other Directors’ remuneration are disclosed 1n the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 20 to 24,

which form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the accounts continued

5 Exceptional items

Group
2010 2008
£m £m
Disclosed 1n the income statement
Profits/(loss) on property disposals 07 18
UK & Rol impairment of property, plant and equipment (see note 11) (14) 09
Onerous lease provision (14) -
Poland
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (see note 11) (18) -
Closure costs a7 -
Over provision for pre-opening costs of Purfleet 11 -
Post acqusition reorgamsation of new businesses - {12)
Impairment of investment 1n Joint venture - {02}
59 ©5)

The onerous lease provision relates to three properties in the UK that are pot trading and are exther empty or leased at below the passing rent

The provision covers the period unul full cost recovery 1s expected

The costs relating to Poland reflect the impairment of assets to disposal value and the costs of closure of the 11 stores trading at the start of the year

‘The exceptional pre-opening costs of the cutting and distnbution centre recogrsed in 2007/8 were over-provided by £1 1m which has been released

The post acquisition reorganisation costs of the new businesses are primanly redundancy and other costs ansing from the integration of the

support functions mnto Carpetright

6 Net finance costs

Group Group
2010 2009
£m £m
Finance costs
Interest on borrowings and overdrafts 49 (53)
Fees amortisation {05) 05)
Interest on obhigations under finance leases {02) 02)
Interest on pension scheme obligations (note 22) (10) (10)
Other interest payable {02) (3]
(68) (72)
Finance mcome
Interest on cash and cash equivalents - 05
Expected return on pension scheme assets {note 22) 09 10
Other interest receivable - 01
09 16
Net finance costs (59) (56)

Carpetright ple Annual report and accounts 2010



7 Tax
(1) Analysis of the charge in the penod
Group Group
20010 2009
Em £m
UK current tax 44 20
Overseas current tax 16 21
Total current tax 60 41
UK deferred tax (01) (0 6)
Overseas deferred tax 06 14
Total deferred tax 05 08
Total tax charge in the income statement 65 49
Tax of £0 4m has been credited to the income staternent (2009 £0 1m credit) in respect of exceptional items
{u) Reconcihation of profit before tax to total tax
Group Group
2010 2009
£m £m
Profit before tax 223 167
Tax charge at UK Corporation Tax rate of 28 09% (2009 28 0%) 62 47
Adjusted for the effects of
QOverseas tax rites {03) (02}
Non-qualifying deprectation 09 07
Foreign exchange movements on foreign deferred tax - 03
Other permanent differences 03 (03}
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (06) 03)
Total tax charge i the mcome statement 65 49

The weighted average annual effective tax rate for the perrod 15 29 5% (2009 298%) Thus decrease arises pnmanly from one off credits n the

year offset by overseas tax movements

(1) Tax on items taken directly to or transterred from equity

Group Group

w10 2009

£mn £€m

Deferred tax on actuanal gains, recognised in other comprehensive income 06 02

Deferred tax on share-based payments 01 01

Total tax recogmised 1n equity 07 03
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Notes to the accounts continued

8 Dividends
2010 2009
Pencr: Pence
Group and Company per share £m pershare Em
Prior year final divdend paid 40 27 300 201
Current year intenm dividend paid 80 54 40 27
120 81 340 228

The Directors propose a final dividend of 8 0 pence per share amounting to £5 4m {2009 4 0 pence per share, £2 7m) which 15 not included as
a liabihity 1n these financial statements Subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, the proposed dividend will be
paid on 24 September 2010 to shareholders who are on the register of members on 10 September 2010

Thus would take the 2010 interim and final dividend payments to 16 0 pence amounting to £10 8m (2009 8 0 pence, £5 4m}

9 Eamings per share
Basic earmungs per share 1s calculated by dividing earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares 1n 1ssue during the penod, excluding those held by Equuty Trust {Jersey) Lumited (see note 25) which are treated as cancelled

In order to compute diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted to assume converston of
all potentially dilutive ordinary shares Those share options granted to employees and Executive Directors where the exercise pnice 1s less than
the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the period, represent potentially dilutive ordinary shares

201 2009

Waghted Wesghted
sverage number  Eammngs pa aversge number  Earnungs per
Larmings of shares share Earmings of shares share
im Mullions Pence £m Millwns Pence
Basic earnings per share 158 672 235 118 672 176
Effect of dilutive share options 01 04 - 01 04 -
Diluted earnings per share 159 67 6 235 119 676 176

Reconciliation of earnings per share excluding post tax profit on exceptional items:

52weeksended 52 weeksended
| May 2010 2 May 2009

Pence Pence

Basic earmings per share 235 176
Adjusted for the effect of exceptional items

Exceptional items 87 07

Tax thereon {0 6} on

Underlying earmings per share 316 182

The Directors have presented an additional measure of earnings per share based on underlying earmings This 1s i accordance with the
practice adopted by most major retallers Underlying earnings 1s defined as profit excluding exceptional items and related tax.
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10 Intangible assets

Group
Computer
Goodwall software Brands Total
£m Em £m £m

Cost
At 3 May 2008 453 218 0t 672
Exchange differences 27 - - 27
Acquisition of subsidiaries 74 - - 74
Additions - 20 - 20
Disposals - {03) - (03)
At 2 May 2009 554 235 01 790
Exchange differences (07 - - (07)
Addiions - 03 - 03
Disposals - {01 - ©1)
At 1 May 2010 547 237 01 785
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 3 May 2008 05 39 01 45
Amortisation - 35 - 35
Disposals - {02) - 02)
At 2 May 2009 05 72 0t 78
Exchange differences - o1 - 1)
Amortisation - 36 - 36
At 1 May 2010 05 107 01 113
Net book value
At 1 May 2010 542 130 - 672
At 2 May 2009 549 16 3 - 712

Goodwill 1s not amortised Instead 1t 1s subject to an umpairment review at each reporting date or more frequently 1f there 1s an indication that
it may be impawred Other intangibles are amortised and also tested for impairment when there 1s an indication that the asset may be impaired
Goodwill impairment, intangible amortisation and impairment and reversals thereof are recogmsed 1n full in administration expenses in the
income statement dunng the period in which they are identified

Group goodwill comprnises purchased goodwill in respect of the Sleepright business in December 2008, £2 9m, the Ben de Graaff business in
July 2008, £4 9m, Carpetwortd i March 2008, £6 9m, Storeys in May 2007, £15 3m, the Mays business in June 2005, £4 7m and The Netherlands
and Belgtan businesses 1 2002, £19 5m Goodwll 15 allocated to the cash generating umits to which it relates

Goodwill 1s impaired 1f the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the hugher of fair value less costs to
sell and the value in use In the absence of a recent market transaction the recoverable amount is determined from value in use calculations
These calculations are based on 10 year profit projections, the same peniod used by the Group for appraising the potental of business acquisitions,
adjusted for non-cash items, planned working capital movements and capital expenditure The cash flow projections for the initial three year
peniod are based on financial budgets and plans approved by the Board The key dnvers are hke-for-like sales growth, gross margin percentage
and anhcipated cost inflanon Cashflows beyond the plan period are extrapolated at a constant growth rate of 2 5% {2009 2 5%) The growth
rate 15 1n line wath long-term growth rates of the countnes in which the Group operates The pre-tax discount rate apphed to cash flow
projections i1s 8 3% (2009 9 6%) and 15 based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital adjusted to reflect the nisks of the businesses
acquired Based on these calculations goodwall 1s not impaired. An increase of 1% in the discount rate would not change the outcome of these
calculations An increase of 3% n the discount rate would be required before any matenal impairment of goodwill would be indrcated
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Notes to the accounts continued

10 Intangible assets continued

Company
Computer
Goodwll software Brands ‘Tomal
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 3 May 2008 - 217 01 218
Additions - 20 - 20
Disposals - (03) - (0 3)
At 2 May 2009 - 234 01 235
Additions 31 03 - 34
At 1 May 2010 31 237 01 269
Accumulated amortisation and unpairment
At 3 May 2008 - 39 01 40
Amortisation - 35 - 35
Bisposals - (02) - (02)
At 2 May 2009 - 72 01 73
Exchange differences - o) - 1)
Amortisauion - 36 - 36
At 1 May 2010 - 107 01 108
Net book value
At 1 May 2010 31 130 - 161
At 2 May 2009 - 162 - 162

Company goodwill compnses purchased goodwill ansing on the transfer of businesses from subsidiaries to the Parent Company 1n respect of

Carpetworld £0 8m and Sleepright £2 3m
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Group
Long leasehold Short
Frechohd land land Jeaschold Faxtures Phntand
andbuldings buildings buskding; and fiitmgs machanery Total
£m £m £m Em £m im
Cost
At 3 May 2008 719 173 208 933 399 2432
Exchange differences 46 - 02 15 34 97
Additions 37 - 02 81 25 145
Acqusition of subsidianes - - - 04 - 04
Transfer to investment property (31) - - - - Gn
Disposals - - {09) (10 6) (21) (13 6)
At 2 May 2009 771 17 3 203 927 437 2511
Exchange differences 09) - 01) (04) {08) (22)
Additions - 04 06 63 05 78
Transfer between asset class {09) 09 - - - -
Transfer to investment property 25) - - (02) - 27)
Disposals - - 08) (41) (12) 61)
At 1 May 2010 728 186 200 943 422 247 9
Accumulated depreciation and imparrment
At 3 May 2008 40 15 72 406 241 774
Exchange differences 04 01 01 12 22 40
Impairment - - 01 08 - 09
Depreciation 12 05 13 86 48 164
Transfer to investment property 02) - - - - 02)
Disposals - - {04) 99) (18) (121)
At 2 May 2009 54 21 83 413 293 86 4
Exchange differences (01) 01 - (03) (06) an
Impairment 07 - 08 16 01 32
Depreciation 12 05 10 79 46 152
Transfer to investment property (0 8) - - on - 09
Disposals - - {06) (26) (12) (44)
At 1 May 2010 64 25 95 47 8 322 98 4
Net book value-
At 1 May 2010 66 4 161 105 465 100 149 5
At 2 May 2009 717 152 120 514 144 1647
‘The impairment of property, plant and equipment relates to a net movement en 13 loss making stores in UK & Rol and 11 Polish stores
Assets held under finance leases have the following net book value:
Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 110 2009
£m £m £m £m
Cost 95 134 28 67
Accumulated deprecration and impairment (19) {44) (t4) (41)
Net book value 76 90 14 26

Included n Group and Company assets held under finance leases are plant and machuinery with a net book value of £ml {2009 £1.2m), the Company
includes buildings with a net book value of £1 4m (2009 £1 4m) and the Group £7 6m (2009 £7 8m})
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Notes to the accounts continued

11 Property, plant and equipment continued

Company
Long leaschold
Frechold land lndand Shortleaschokl  Fusturcsand Plntand
and bunldmgs bukdings Tukdings fitungs machnery Total
Lm £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 3 May 2008 310 108 207 816 181 1622
Exchange differences - - 02 03 02 07
Additions 10 - 02 71 13 96
Transfer (to)/from subsidianes (13) - - 06 - (09)
Disposals - - {(09) (10 4} 21) (13 4)
At 2 May 2009 305 10 8 202 792 175 158 2
Exchange differences on - {01} (02} {01) (05)
Additions - 04 06 54 - 64
Transfer to Investment property 03) - - - - (03)
Disposals - - {07) (16) (05) (28)
At 1 May 2010 301 112 200 828 169 161 0
Accumulated depreciation and mmpairment
At 3 May 2008 10 15 73 322 86 506
Exchange differences - - 0l 02 - 03
Imparrment - - 01 08 - 09
Depreciation 02 02 12 84 26 126
Disposals - - (04) (9 8) {18) (120)
At 2 May 2009 12 17 83 318 94 524
Exchange differences - - - (02} 01) (¢3)
Impairment - - 07 06 01 14
Depreciation 03 02 10 73 29 17
IDisposals - - (0 5) 10) (05} (20)
At 1 May 2010 15 19 95 385 118 632
Net book value
At 1 May 2010 28 6 93 105 4413 51 978
At 2 May 2009 293 91 119 47 4 81 105 8
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12 Investment property

Whule investment property has not been independently valued the Directors consider that the value of such properties for the Group 15
approxumately £32m (2009 approximately £25m) and for the Company 1s not sigmificantly different to book value 1n either year Operating

expenses attributable to investment properties are incurred directly by tenants under tenant-repairing leases

Group

Company

&m £
Cost
At 3 May 2008 222 79
Exchange differences 20 -
Transfer from property, plant and equpment 31 -
At 2 May 2009 273 79
Exchange differences (06) o1)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment 27 03
At 1 May 2010 294 81
Accumulated depreciation and impawment
At 3 May 2008 12 03
Exchange differences 01 -
Transfer from property, plant and equpment 02 -
Depreciation 05 01
At 2 May 20609 20 04
Exchange differences 01 -
Transfer from property, plant and equpment 09 -
Depreciation 03 -
At 1 May 2010 33 04
Net book value
At 1 May 2010 261 77
A2 May 2009 253 75

13 Investment in subsidiary undertakings

The Directors consider that to give full particulars of all subsidiary undertakings would lead to a statement of excessive length The following
mformation relates to those subsidiary undertalangs whose results or financial position, m the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the

figures of the Group All of the Group’s subsidiary undertakings are included 1n the consolidated accounts

Countrvof Perientzgeof  Percentage of
mMcorporanon Prinapal  ordinary shares  ordinary shares
and operation achvity held directly  held indirectly

Carpetnight of London Limited Great Bntan~ Holding 100%
Melford Commercial Properties Lunuted Great Bntam  Property 100%
Carpetland NV Belgium Retai} 100%
Infradis Real Estate NV Belgrum  Property 100%
Carpetland BY The Netherlands Retail 100%
Fontainebleau Vastgoed BY The Netherlands ~ Property 100%
Carpetright Poland 5p Zo o Poland Retail 100%
Company

2010 2009

£m £m

Cost
At the begmning of the period 391 401
Exchange differences - 04
Acquisition of shares 1n subsidianes - 07
Transfer to subsidiary undertakings - (21)
Impairment of investment m Carpetright Poland SpZ o o (27) -
At the end of the penod 364 391
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Notes to the accounts continued

14 Inventories

Group and Company inventories are held in the form of fimshed goods for resale Write downs of stock values to net realisable value during

the current and comparative periods are immaterral

15 Trade and other receivables

Group Group Companv Company
2010 2009 010 009
£m £m £m £
Non-current
Receivables from subsidiaries - - 498 604
Prepayments and accrued income 14 13 14 13
14 13 512 617
Current
Trade receivables 81 56 32 42
Less prowision for impairment {06) {08) (04) {06)
75 48 28 36
Other recervables 64 54 61 47
Prepayments and accrued income 242 242 222 179
381 344 311 262
Total trade and other receivables 395 357 823 879
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other recervables approxtmate to their fair values
Provision for impairment
Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 20t0 2009
£m £m tm Em
At the beginning of the period 08) {06) 06) {05)
Receivables written off against the provision in the period - 07 - 07
{Increase)/decrease 1n the provision in the period 02 (09) 02 {08)
(06} (08) 04 {0s6)
The table below shows the financral assets included in trade and other recervables at the balance sheet date
Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m im im
Majer insurance conipames 33 23 33 23
Property rent debtors 16 18 16 18
Other debtors 15 12 11 05
Retail customers 75 49 29 37
Trade and other recewvables 139 102 89 83

Balances from retail customers are considered to have hutle credit rish as they are primanly settled by cash or major credit card and must be

settled prior to the goods being collected from/delivered by the store

The age profile of balances other than those with retail customers 1s set out below

Group Group Company Company

2010 2009 mie 2009

£m Em £m £m

Neather past due nor impaired 56 35 53 35
30 to0 60 days 03 10 03 10
60 to 90 days - - - -
Over 0 days 05 08 05 01
Non-retal trade and other recesvables 64 53 61 46
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16 Cash and cash equivalents
Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 240 2000
tm tm £m £m
Cash at bank and 1 hand 83 17 4 36 105
Cash and cash equivalents on the balance sheets 83 174 36 105
Bank overdrafts {(note 19) (13 3} (4 4) 90) -
Cash and cash equivalents 1n the cash flow statements {50) 13¢ (54) 105
17 Trade and other payables
Group Group Company Company
010 2009 2010 2009
im Lm £m E&m
Current
Trade payables 628 604 326 490
Other taxes and social secunty 132 91 101 81
Accruals and deferred income 382 413 331 315
1142 1108 958 886
Non-current
Accruals and deferred income 342 315 342 s
Payable to subsidiaries - - 97 41
342 315 439 356
Total trade and other payables 148 4 1423 1397 1242

Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables approximate to their fair values

18 Obhgations under finance leases

leasep Present vahue of mintmum lease pa: ts
Group Group Company Company Group Group Company Company
010 2009 2010 09 2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m m £m {m
Amounts payable wathun one year 03 12 02 11 01 09 01 09
Amounts payable between one and five years 12 12 10 10 03 04 03 04
Amounts payable after five years 60 63 23 25 26 26 16 16
75 87 35 46 30 39 20 29
Less future finance charges (45) (4 8) (15) (7
Present value of obligations under
finance leases 30 39 20 29
Current 01 09 01 0
Non-current 29 30 19 20

The Group leases certain properties under finance leases The average lease term 15 20 years (2009 21 years) for properties The vehidle leases
ended dunng the current financial year Mirumum lease payments are discounted at the rate inherent 1n the leases Interest rates are fixed at
the contract date All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments
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Notes to the accounts continued

19 Borrowings and overdrafts

Group Groap Company Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m fm m
Current
Unsecured overdraft 133 44 90 -
Borrowings
Secured 89 127 89 55
Borrowings and overdrafts 222 171 179 55
Non-current
Borrowings
Secured 490 885 490 885
Unsecured 43 27 - -
Borrowings 533 912 4990 885
755 108 3 669 94 0
Secured borrowings are denorninated in Sterling and Euros and are secured on certain of the Group’s frechold properties
The effective interest rates at the year end are as follows
Group Group Companv Corupany
010 0% 2010 2009
% % % %
Overdrafts 34 33 39 33
Borrowings 38 47 39 49
The matunty profile of borrowings and overdrafts are as follows
Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£an £m £m £m
Amounts payable within one year 222 171 179 55
Amounts payable between one and two years 122 90 122 90
Amounts payable between two and five years 411 822 368 795
755 108 3 669 940
The matunty analysis 1s grouped by when the debt 1s contracted to mature rather than by repricing dates
20 Provisions for iabilities and charges
Onerous lease  Reorgamsation Total
Group and Company i m‘uz:: e
At the beginmng of the period 06 02 08
Added dunng the penod 14 - 14
Utilised during the period (0 3) 01) {0 4)
At the end of the period 17 01 18

Onerous lease provisions are expected to be used over penods of up to 10 years Reorgamsation provistons are expected to be used withun the

2010/11 financial year
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21 Deferred tax assets and habilities

Group Company Company
010 2009 010 2009
otes £m £m £m £m
Recognised in the income statement
Accelerated capital allowances 94 94 49 57
Fauir value of acquired property, plant and equipment 30 32 - -
Rollover relief 107 145 106 138
Short-term temporary differences 03) (01) (07) (0 5)
Tax losses 06) (09) (04) (06)
Recogrused 1n other comprehensive income
Retirement benefit obligation 22(1){a){8) (13) 07) (13) (©7)
Recognised directly in equity
Share-based payments 02) ©n (02) 1)
Acqusition of subsidiaries
Fair value of acquired property, plant and equpment 14 14 07 07
Rollover relief 12 12 - -
Short-term temporary differences 01 - - -
Gross deferred tax Liabilities 234 279 136 183
Recogmised in the income statement
Tax losses (29) (33} - -
Gross deferred tax assets (29) 33) - -
Net deferred tax lrabilities 205 246 136 183
The gross movement on the deferred tax account 1s as follows
Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m
At the beginnung of the period 246 257 183 206
Charged/(credited) to income statement {note 7) 05 08 1) ©6)
Transferred to current tax (39) (16) 39) (14)
Recognised in other comprehensive mcome (note 7) {06) {0 2) (06) ©2)
Credited directly to equity {note 7} (01) {©1 o1 o1)
At the end of the period 205 246 136 183

At the reporting date, the Group had unused tax losses of £8 8m (2009 £10 1m) which can be carried forward indefinitely and are available
for offset against future profits A deferred tax asset of £2 9m (2009 £3 3m) has been recogmsed 1n respect of these losses

Deferred tax assets of £2 7m (2009 £1 9} were available for offset against deferred tax Liabilities of £26 1m (2009 £29 8m) hence the Group’s

deferred tax liabahties as at 1 May 2010 1s £23 4m (2009 £27 9m)
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Notes to the accounts continued

22 Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a variety of pension schemes, principally in the UK, The Netherlands and Belgium They compnise defined benefit
schemes where benefits are based on employees® length of service and average final salary, and defined contribution schemes where the
employer company pays a set contribution to the scheme The UK defined benefit schemes referred to in 22 (1) (2} and the first two defined
contribution schemes referred to in 22 (1) are included 1n the accounts of the Company

(i) Defined benefit schemes

(a) UK defined benefit schemes

The Company operated a funded defined benefit pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay for its employees and has
assumed the hability for the scheme previously operated by Storey Carpets Lid (Storeys) The Company scheme was closed to defined benefit
service accrual on 30 Apri 2010 and has been closed to new members since 31 March 2006 The Storeys scheme 15 also closed to new members
and has no active members The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Company The assets of the Company scheme are
nvested i a Managed Fund operated by SEI Contnbutions are determuned by a qualified actuary using the projected unit method The most
recent actuanial review was at 6 Apnl 2008 when the actuanal value of the assets represented 79% of the benefits accrued to members after
allowing for expected future increases n earnuings A deficit reduction plan has been agreed with the Trustees under which £0 3m per annum
mn additional contnbutions 1s being pad to the fund The assets of the Storeys scheme are held in mdependently managed funds The most
recent actuanial review of the Storeys scheme was at 1 March 2008 when the actuartal value of the assets represented 84% of the benefits
accrued to members The numbers set out below are the aggregate of the two schemes

The assets and labilities of the schernes were valued on an [AS 19 basis at 1 May 2010 by a qualified actuary

1) Key assumphions tsed
2010 2009
% %
Expected rate of salary increases n/a 37
Expected rate of pension increases 33 29
Deferred penston revaluation 36 -
Discount rate 55 68
Expected rate of inflatton 36 29
Expected return on scheme assets 65 67

The assumptrons used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, due to the hmescale
covered, may not necessarily be borne out 1n practice The assumpuions used for future life expectancy of members of the scheme are derived
from mdustry standard tables Specifically the SINMA table (2009 SINMA table) with medium cohort improvement has been used for male
pensioners and the SINFA table (2009 SINFA table) with medium cohort improvement for female pensioners projected by vear of burth

The most significant assumptions are the expected return on scheme assets, salary increases and the discount rate, of which the most sensitive

assumption 16 the discount rate 1f thus assumption mncreased or decreased by 0 1% the defined benefit obligation would change by £0 2m
(2009 £0 2m)

2) The amnount included in the balance sheet ansing from the Group and Company’s obligations m respect of the defined benefit scheme is as follows

010 1009
£m £m
Present value of pension scheme obligations 211 147
Fair value of pension scheme assets (16 3) az3
Retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet 48 24
3) The amounts recogmsed i the tncome statement in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme are as follows
e "o
Current service cost recognised in adnmimistration expenses {note 4) 03 05
Curtallment gam recognised n adminstration expenses (note 4) (05} -
Interest cost on pension scheme obhgattons recognised in finance costs (note 6) 10 10
Expected return on pension scheme assets recognised in finance income (note 6} 09) (10}
Total recogmsed in the income statement 01 05
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22 Retirement benefit obligations continued
4) Reconciltatton of movement i net pension deficit

2010 2009
Lm £m
Operung balance (24) (13)
Total recognised in the income statement 01 (05)
Contributions 05 05
Actuarial loss recognised in other comprehensive income (30) (11}
Closing balance (4 8) (24)
5) The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income n respect of the defined benefit pension scheme are as follows
“im ‘m
Actuaral gain/(loss) on plan assets 28 (37}
Expenence adjustment on hablities - (0 8)
Change 1n assumptions underlying present value of habilities (58) 34
Total (3 0) {11)
Cumulative total 39 -
6) Movements in the pension scheine obligations are as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
Opening balance 147 161
Current service cost 03 05
Curtailment gain (05) -
Interest on pension scheme obligations 10 10
Actuarial (gamn)/loss recogmsed in other comprehensive income 58 (26)
Benefits paid (04) 04)
Employee contributions 02 01
Closing balance 211 147
7) Movements i the fair value of the pension scheme assets are as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
Opening balance 123 148
Expected return on penston scheme assets 09 10
Actuanal gain/(loss) recogrused 1n other comprehensive income 28 (37)
Actual return on assets 37 27
Employer contnibutions 05 05
Employee contnbutions 02 01
Benefits pud 04) (04)
Closing balance 16 3 123
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Notes to the accounts continued

22 Retirement benefit obhgations continued
8) The assets m the pension scheme and the expected rates of return are-

2010 2009 2008

Lonyg term Category of Long term Category of Long term Category of

expectod assctasa cxpected assel asa expected assetass

rate of proportion rate of proportion Tate of proportion

return of total return of tutal Teturn, of ttal

% £m % % £m » * £m %

Equities 74 92 564 71 70 569 75 86 581

Bonds 50 23 141 55 21 17 1 55 25 169

Property 74 01 06 n/a - - n/a - -

Cash 44 03 19 05 01 08 50 01 07

Annuities 55 44 27 0 68 31 252 65 36 243

Fair value of pension scheme assets 163 1000 123 1000 148 1000
Present value of pension scheme obligations 211) {147) 161)
Retirement benefit obligations (48) {24) (13)
Related deferred tax asset 13 07 05
(35) (17) (08)

The long-term return on equnties 1s assumed to be 3 8% 1n excess of nflation (2009 4 0%) The rate of return on bonds 1s assumed to be in line

with the yield on AA-rated corporate bonds

9} History of expertenice gamns and losses

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

£m £m £m Em £m

Fair value of scheme assets i63 123 148 85 82
Present value of defined benefit obligations (211) (147) (16 1) {10 3) 97
Liabulity recogmsed 1n the balance sheet 48) 24 (13 (s (15)

Expenence adjustments on pension scheme obligations - 08 02) (01 04

Percentage of pension scheme obligations (%6) - {54)% (12)% (1 0)% 41%

Experience adjustments on pension scheme assets 28 G7 (15) ©4) 13

Percentage of pension scheme assets (%) 17 2% (30 )% (10 1)% (47)% 15 9%

Contnbutions of £0 3m are expected to be paid into these pension schemes dunng 2010/11
(b) Multi-employer scheme

The Group’s Dutch subsidtary participates in a multi-employer run industry pension scheme which has arrangements sumular to those of a
defined benefit scheme It s not possible to 1dentify the Group’s share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme, and therefore in
accordance with IAS 19, the Group has taken the exemption for multi-employer pension schemes not to disclose pension scheme assets and

habilities Accordingly, although this scheme 1s a defined benefit scheme 1t 15 treated as a defined contribution scheme recognising the
contributions payable in each period 1n the income statement Under the terms of the scheme the scheme deficit is recovered through

increased contributions from participating members At the period end the Group was unable to obtain a valuation of the industry scheme’s

full surplus or deficit Contnbutions charged to the income statement amounted to £1 1m (2009 £1 1m}

(i) Defined contnbution schemes

The Company launched a Group Personal Pension Plan in April 2006 The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the

Company and are invested by Scottish Life Contnbutions for the period amounted to £0 8m (2009 £0 8m)

In addition, the Group operates defined contribution penston schemes for subsiciary companies in Belgium and The Netherlands The Group
makes contributions into the schemes, the assets of which are held separately from those of the Group and are invested by local insurance

companites The contributions by the Group to industry collective schemes were £0 1m (2009 £0 im)
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23 Financial instruments
(i) Financial nsk management objectives and policies

Risk management

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise derrvatives, borrowings and overdrafts, cash and cash equivalents These financial
nstruments are used to manage funding and hquidity requirements Other financral instruments whch arise directly from the Group’s
operations include trade recevables and payables

Exposure to credit, liquidity, foreign currency exchange and interest rate risks artse in the normal course of the Group’s business operations
and each of these risks are managed in accordance with the Group's treasury risk management strategy, whtch 1s also discussed 1n the
Business Review in the section Management of Liquidity and Financing

(a) Credit nisk
The Group does not have sigmficant concentrations of credit nisk as exposure 15 spread over a number of counterparties and customers

The Group 15 exposed to a small amount of crechit risk that 1s primarily attnbutable to 1ts trade and other recervables, the majonty of
which relates to retail customers (see note 15) Retai customers are required to settle outstanding balances in cash or using a major
credit card prior to goods being collected from/delivered by the store

The credit risk on hquid funds and denvative financial instruments 1s limited because the counterparties are banks with a munimum
AA credit rating The maximum amount of credit risk 1s represented by the carrying amounts of financial assets

{b) Liquudity nisk

The Group finances its operations from a mix of retained profits and bank borrowings achieved through term loans, revolving credit
agreements and overdraft faciities Daly cash balances are forecast and surplus cash 1s placed on treasury deposit with the Group’s
bankers at commercial rates All counterparties have mumum AA credit ratings

The tabie below sutnmarises the matunty profile of the Group's financial halnhities based on contractual undiscounted payments, including interest
Less than Between Between Over

1 year 1and 2 years 2and 5 years 5 years Total
Group £m £m fm £m £m
At 1 May 2010
Interest bearing loans and borrowings, including denvatives 233 122 411 - 766
Finance leases o1 01 03 25 30
Trade and other payables 924 - - - 924
1158 123 41 4 25 1720
At 2 May 2009
Interest bearing loans and borrowings, including derivatives 185 99 822 - 1106
Finance leases 09 02 02 26 39
Trade and other payables 94 4 - - - 944
1138 101 824 26 2089
Company
At 1 May 2010
Interest bearing loans and borrowings, including denvatives 190 122 368 - 680
Frnance leases o1 01 03 15 20
Trade and other payables 890 - - - 890
108 1 123 371 15 1590
AL 2 May 2009
Interest bearing loans and borrowings, including denvatives 69 99 795 - 96 3
Finance leases 09 02 02 16 29
Trade and other payables 796 - - - 796
874 101 797 16 178 8

Commutted overdraft facilities are renewable annually and amounts undrawn were £2 4m and €1 Om (2009 £10 Om and €8 7m) The
Company has comnutted fachities to July 2012 These facilities compnse a £33 Om amorusing term loan, a €23 5m amorusing term loan and a
£45 0m revolving credit faciity There are a number of covenants which commut the Group to maintaiming certain rates of fixed charge cover,
leverage and cash flow cover The Company 15, and 15 expected to remain, tn comphance with these covenants The revolving credit facthty had
an undrawn amount of £35 0m (2009 £5 0m)
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Notes to the accounts continued

23 Financial instruments continued

{c) Foreign exchange risk

Outside the UK the Group operates in the Republic of Ireland, The Netherlands, Belgium and Poland Revenues and expenses of these
operations are denominated in Euros or Zlotys The Group's investrent m Poland 1s currently not sufficiently material to requure the risk
to be hedged The Group mutigates currency risk in respect of the net mvestment in European operations by designating Euro denomunated
borrowings as hedging instruments of Euro denominated mnvestments wn foreign operations

If the closing Sterling-Euro rate had been 8 01 points lower in the period the exchange difference reported in the statement of comprehensive
income would have been £0 6m higher (2009 £0 4m huigher) At I May 2010 1f Sterling had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the Euro
profit after tax for the year would have been £0 3m hugher/lower as a result of the translation of the Euro denominated businesses

Financial assets and habilities and foreign operations are translated at the following rates of exchange

Eure Eura Zloty Doty
2010 2009 2010 2009
Average rate 113 119 471 453
Closing rate 115 112 450 489

(d) Interest rate risk
The Group has various borrowings bearing interest at a margm over LIBOR or EURIBOR rates Group policy 1s to manage interest rate nsk
by purchasing interest rate swap agreements to hedge at least 75% of term loans The remaindes 15 hable to interest at prevaling wterest rates

In accordance with IFRS 7, the Group has undertaken sensitivity analysis on its financial instruments which are affected by changes in mterest
rates This analysis has been prepared on the basis of a constant amount of net debt, a constant ratio of fixed to floating interest rates, and on
the basis of hedging instruments in place at 1 May 2010 and 2 May 2009 respectively Consequently analysis relates to the situation at those
dates and 15 not representative of the years then ended The following assumptions were made

= balance sheet sensitrvity to interest rates apphies only to derivative financial mstruments, as the carrying value of debt and deposits does
not change as interest rates move,

* gans or losses are recogrused 1n equity or the ncome statement in hine with the accounting policies set out in note 1, and

» cash flow hedges were effective

Based on the Group’s net debt position at the year end a 1% change mn interest rates would affect the Group’s profit before tax by
approxtmately £0 3m (2009 £0 4m)

The interest rate profile of the financial assets and habilities of the Group, after the impact of interest rate swaps 1s as follows

2010 2009

Waghted Wesghted

average avenage

effectne effectrve
interestrate  Floanng rate Fixed rate  Interest free Total  smerestrate  Floaung rate Fixedrate  !nterestfree Total
% £ £m £ £m % £m £m £m £m
Sterling 03 36 - 89 125 31 106 - 83 189
Euro 12 46 - 47 93 05 63 - 19 82
Zloty - 01 - - 01 - 05 - - 05
Total financial assets 83 - 136 219 174 - 102 276
Sterling 32 (263) (341 (780} (1384) 27 229 562 756 1547
Euro 33 47y (45 (140) (332 35 186 168 179 533
Zloty - - - 04 (04 - - - 09 09
Total financial habithities (310) (48 6) (924} (1720) 415 730 944 2089

Capital management
The Group aims to maxirmise shareholder value by maintamning an appropriate debtfequuty capital structure It uses a number of mechanisms

to manage debt equity levels, as appropriate, in the light of economic and tradmg conditions and the future capital investment requirements
of the business
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23 Financial instruments continued

(i) Fair value of financial assets and habilihies

Financial assets and Latuhities are classified 1n accordance with TAS 39 Financial instruments have not been reclassified or derecognised in
the period There are no financial assets which have been pledged or held as collateral None of the Group’s loans 1s impaired In addition
the Group does not have any financial assets or liabilities teasured at farr value through the income statement other than derivatives

There are no available-for-sale financial assets

The fair values of financial assets and habnlitses, together with their carrying amounts are

Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Nomunal value c‘nﬁlﬁ:gv:l’: Nomtinal value &"')ﬁ":i‘;: Nomunal value Cznand“[:‘;jﬁ Norunal vahe C::d’}:f::
£m £m £m £m im £m £m £
At cost
Cash and cash equivalents - g3 ~ 17 4 - 36 - 105
Loans and receivables at amortised cost
Trade and other recervables - 136 - 102 - 58 8 - 687
Total financial assets - 219 - 276 - 624 - 792
Financial habilities at amortised cost
Borrowings and overdrafts - (755) - {108 3) - (669) - {94 0)
Finance lease obligations - B0 - {39) - 20 - {29}
Financial Labilities at cost
Trade and other payables - (92 4) - (94 4) - (890) - {796)
Dernvative finanaial instruments used
for hedging
Interest rate swaps 427 an 668 {23) 427 (11) 668 23)
Total financial iabilities 427 (172 0) 658 (208 9) 4?27 (159 0) 668 (178 8)
Net financial habiities 427 {150 1) 668 (1813) 427 (96 6) 668 {99 6)

Determination of farr values

The fair values of denvatives are esumated using future cash flows discounted at risk-adjusted discount rates based on market yreld curves
The carrying values of all other financial assets and habihities are deemed to reflect fair value

(i) Denvative financial iInstruments

The Group has vanious Euro and Sterling-denominated borrowings which bear interest at floating rates Interest on the Sterling borrowing 1s
charged at LIBOR plus a margin The Euro-denommated borrowings bear interest at the prevarling EURIBOR rate plus a margin Interest
rate swaps were purchased to fix approximately 75% of the floating interest charges on term debt due within the next two years at fixed rates
of interest ranging from 3 52% to 5 25% (2009 3 21%to 5 25%) The matunty profiles of the interest rate swaps are set to terminate prior to

the underlying hedged borrowings

Denvative financial instruments are not purchased for speculative purposes

Non-current habilities

Group Group Company Company
2010 2009 010 x09
£m £m £m £m

Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges

{11) (23) (n (23)
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Notes to the accounts continued

23 Financial instruments continued

(iv) Hedge accounting
{a) Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps denomunated in Euros and Sterhing have been executed to hedge the Group's exposure to changes in floating mterest rates

in respect of approxumately 75% of the Group's term loans Hedge documentation is put in place at inception of all hedging refationships
Effeciveness tests are performed at each reporting date

Interest rate swaps are measured at fair value under IAS 39 Changes in fair value are posted to other comprehensive income n respect of the
portion of the hedges which satisfy the cnteria to be effective hedges Charges or credits relating to the portion which does not satisfy these
cntera are recogmsed drrectly in the income statement

Cash flows 1n respect of the interest rate swaps are generally expected to occur at the same dates as the cash flows of the underdying hedged items.

(b) Net investment hedges

Euro-denominated borrowings are designated as hedging instruments of Euro-denomunated net assets of the Group’s foreign operations in
order to protect the Group from currency nisk in respect of the Group’s Euro-denominated foreign eperations Borrowing balances are carned
at amortised cost which approximates fair value since borrowings bear interest at the prevaihng floating rate The carrying value of borrowings
amounted to €22 3m (2009 €23 5m)

24 Share capital
wio 2009
Ordinary shares of 1p each £ £
Authonsed - 100,600,000 (2009 100,000,000) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Number of
allotted, called
up and fully pad Treasury
ordinary shares Share caprtal  Stare premmum shares Total
Group and Company Mullons £m £m tm £m
At 3 May 2008 672 07 154 02 159
Purchase of own shares by Employee Share Trust - - - 02) (02)
Transfer of Treasury shares to parucipants - - - 03 03
At 2 May 2009 672 07 154 (1B} 160
Purchase of own shares by Employee Share Trust - - - (02) 02)
Transfer of Treasury shares to participants - - - 01 01
At 1 May 2010 672 07 154 {02) 159

The Group’s LTIP was established to grant contingent night to shares Such grants are made on recommendation by the Group’s Remuneration
Commuttee Shares are purchased by a Trust and held until they are used to satisfy the LTIP awards As required by [AS 32 such shares are
classified as Treasury shares and accordingly are deducted from total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent The assets,
habilities, income and costs of the LTIP and Trust are included in both the Company and the consohdated financial statements Duning the
penod the Trust purchased 16,500 ordinary shares for £0 1m At the year end the trust held 17,869 (2009 23,543) ordinary shares of 1p each
with a market vatue of £0 2m (2009 £0 lm)

The Group also operates a share option scheme under which shares are 1ssued to satisfy share option awards that are exercised
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25 Share-based payments

Included wrthin admimistration expenses 15 £0 5m (2009 £0 1m) m respect of equity-settled share-based payments

The Group’s employee share schemes are described below and additronal detail ts disclosed in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages
2010 24 Scheme participants are exther Directors of the Company or employees of the Group The costs associated with the schemes are

accounted for in the Company’s accounts

(L LTIP

Under this scheme participants may receive annual awards in the form of contingent entitlements to Company shares These entitlerents are
equity-settled through the purchase of exasting shares by the admumstering Trust The shares vest three years after award if participants remain
with the Group during the vesting period and the Group meets targeted levels of total shareholder return (*TSR’) and earnings per share
(‘EPS’) growth The performance conditions are fully described in the Directors’ remuneration report 1n the section titled Long-Term

Incentive Plan

During the penod contingent entitlements to 227,608 shares were awarded (2009 nul) The charge recogused in the income statement in
respect of all LTIP awards 1s £0 4m (2009 £0 1m} The fair values of the awards are determined using 2 Monte-Carlo or Black-Scholes
simulation model which takes account of the performance conditions descnbed in the preceding paragraph The fair value per share 1s
based on the expected number of shares that will vest LTIP shares do not earn dividends during the vesting period The Group’s LTIP 1s

admimstered by Equuty Trust (Jersey) Limited

Reconcihation of movements in the penods ended 1 May 2010

LTIP 2009 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2005
Number Number Number
opuens Fair value opons Fanr value options Far value
00 £m 00 km 00 im
Outstanding at 3 May 2008 - - 1018 03 1215 05
Vested - - - - (47 1) 02)
Expired - - - - (74 4) (03)
Outstanding at 2 May 2009 - - 1018 03 - -
Granted 2276 18 - - - -
Forferted - - (17 8) - - -
Vested - - (222) (o1} - -
Expired - - (618) (02) - -
Qutstanding at | May 2010 2276 18 - - - -

Exercisable at 1 May 2010 -

Exercisable at 2 May 2009 - - - - — -
The valuation assumptions used in the application of the Monte-Carlo and Black-Scholes’ models apphed to the relevant schemes above are
as follows

Valuation assumptions “"l.’l'ﬁ miﬁ ”":iﬂ
Fair value per share 776 773 693
Share price at grant (pence) 853 1,177 926
Exercise price (pence) 10 10 10
Expected volatility (%)% 463 230 222
Vesting penod (years) 30 3o 30
Drvidend yeld (%) 31 42 51
Rusk free interest rate (%) 20 49 42
Possibility of ceasing employment before vestung (%) - - 50

i Expected volanlity 1s based on hustorical volatihity over the three year penod preceding the date of grant. The risk free intzrest rate 1s the yield on zero-coupon UK government bonds

at the date of grant of the respective awards over a term consistent wath the vesting penod.

www carpetright. pic.uk

MOAIIAD

MDA STIUISNR
Ju0das 01000

Jodal i00ang

SUILRITS (e



Notes to the accounts continued

25 Share-based payments continued

(1) Savings Related Share Option Scheme ('SAYE')
Three and five year SAYE schemes were mntroduced in 2604 Employees and Executive Directors are invited to subscribe for options over

shares in the Company at a 20% discount The options are exercisable within six menths from the therd or fifth anniversary of the grant

date The entitlement to share options 1s equity-settled Funds for the purchase of Company shares are built up through the contribution of

a maximum of £250 per month from salary During the penod optrons were granted over 67,003 shares in respect of a three year and five
year award exercisable between April and October 2013, and April and October 2015 respecuvely The 2010 tranche of share options are

exercisable at 753 pence per share (2009 295 pence per share) There are no vesting conditions other than continued employment with the
Group unti the respective exerase dates Share options were valued using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model The fair value per share 1s
based on the expected number of shares that will vest The cost charged to the income statement in respect of thus scheme 1s £0 1m (2009 £ml)

Reconciliation of movements in the penods ended 1 May 2010

SAYE 2010 SAYE 2009 SAYE 2008 SAYE 2007 SAYE 2005
dyr Syt 3y 5y yr Syr 2yt Syt Syr
Number Number Number Number Number Number Nunber Nurnber Nurnber
Hptaons options options options ophans options oplions opLns options
0005 0008 000s 0005 2008 '000s 000 0005 000
Outstanding at
3 May 2008 - - - - 140 6 1594 149 154 630
Granted - - 4035 3201 - - - - -
Forfeited - - (57) - (1089) (1306) 67) 73 207)
Outstanding at
2 May 2009 - - 3978 3291 317 288 82 81 42 3
Granted 376 294 - - - - - - -
Forfeited (11) 04) (333) (187) (81) (36) (20) (z4) (34)
Outstanding at
1 May 2010 365 290 3645 3104 236 252 62 57 389
Exeraisable at
1 May 2010 - - - - - - 62 - 389
Exercisable at
2 May 2009 - - - - - - - - -
The valuation assumptions used n the application of the Black-Scholes’ models applied to the relevant schemes above are as follows
SAYE 2010 SAYE 2009 SAYE 2008 SAYE 2007 SAYE 2005
Valuation assumptlons Iy 5yr 3yt 5vr T Syt 3y Svr Syr
Fair value per share
{pence) 333 331 95 81 148 132 322 352 295
Share price at grant
{pence) 941 91 474 474 723 723 1,237 1,237 1,126
Exercise price (pence) 753 753 295 295 618 618 1,040 1,040 901
Expected volatility (%) 47 4 387 424 352 336 297 i99 216 236
Vesting pertod (years) 31 51 31 51 31 51 31 51 51
Dividend yield (%) 31 31 68 68 72 72 38 38 39
Rusk free interest
rate (%) 31 31 22 26 41 41 55 53 46
Possibility of ceasing
employment before
vesting (%) 40 50 40 50 40 50 40 50 50

1 Expected volatility 1s based on hustoncal volatility over the three or five year period respectively preceding the date of grant The nisk free interest rate is the yreld on zero-coupoen UK
government bonds at the date of grant of the respectin e awards over a term consistent with the vesting penod.
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25 Share-based payments continued

(ru} All Employee Share Ownershup Plan ('AESOP’)

Under this scheme staff are invited to contnibute up to £125 per month from pre-tax salary to purchase Company shares The Group does not
incur a share-based payment charge in respect of this scheme since the Company shares are acquured at market value and are not subject to an

accumulation period

26 Capital and other financial commitments

Capital commuitments at 1 May 2010 for which no provision has been made 1n the accounts relate to the acquisition of tangible and intangible

assets, and are-

Group Group Company Company

2010 2009 2018 2009

fm £m £m £

Authonsed and contracted 18 25 14 21

27 Operating lease commitments

At 1 May 2010 the future munimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings and other assets under operating leases are

Group 2018 2009
Land and Land and
butldings Orther buikdings Other
£m £m m £m
Operating leases payable
Amounts payable within one year 916 16 870 15
Amounts payable between one and five years 3345 22 3210 31
Amounts payable after five years 548 6 - 5845 -
9747 38 9925 46
Company 010 2009
Land and Land and
buildings Other bakimgs Ocher
£m Em £m £m
Operating leases payable
Amounts payable within one year 843 13 795 12
Amounis payable between one and five years 3205 17 3090 27
Amounts payable after five years 5455 - 5830 -
9503 30 9715 39

Operating lease payments are negotiated for an average of 10 years (2009 11 years) The Group enters into sublease agreements in respect of
some of its operating leases for stores At the reporting date the Group had contracted with tenants for future minimum operating sublease

receipts amounting to £13 9m (2009 £157m)

28 Contingent hiabilrties
The Group has no matenal contingent habilities at 1 May 2010

The Company’s contingent liabihties denve from guarantees for subsidianes whch are disclosed 1n note 30
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Notes to the accounts continued

29 Movement in ¢ash and net debt
Group

2009 2010
Exchange
Total Cash flow ifferences Revahuation Total
£m £m £m im £m
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 17 4 83
Bank overdrafis (44) (13 3)
Cash and cash equavalents in the cash flow statement 130 {181) 01 - {50}
Borrowings
Current borrowings {127) (89)
Non-current borrowings (912) (533)
(1039) 409 08 - {62 2)
Obligations under finance leases
Current obligations under finance leases (09 (0 1)
Non-current obligations under finance leases (30 (29)
£39) 09 - - (30)
Dernvative financial instruments 23 - - 12 {11)
Net debt 97 1) 237 09 12 {713)
2008 2009
Exchange
Toul Cash flow differences Revabuation Tosat
im &m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 89 174
Bank overdrafts {111) (44)
Cash and cash equavalents m the cash flow statement (22 156 {04) - 130
Borrowings
Current borrowings (11 3) (127)
Non-current borrowings (39 3) (912)
(50 6) (515) (18} - (103 9)
Obligattons under finance leases
Current obligations under finance leases {08) (09)
Non-current obhigations under finance leases (39) (30)
“7) 08 - - (39)
Derivative financial instruments - - - 23 23)
Net debt (575) (351) (22) (23) (97 1)
Company
2009 2010
Total Cashflow mm Revafuation Total
£m £m £m im £m
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 105 36
Bank overdrafts - (90}
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement 105 {155) 04) - (54)
Borrowings
Current borrowings (55) (89)
Non-current borrowings {88 5) (49 0)
(94 0) 355 06 - {579)
Obligations under finance leases
Current obhgations under finance leases 09 01)
Non-current obligations under finance leases 20 (19)
29) 09 - - 20)
Derwvatnve financial instruments {23) - - 12 (11)
Net debt (887) 209 02 12 (66 4)
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29 Movement in cash and net debt continued
Company
2008 2009
Exchange
Total Cash flow differences Revaluation Total
£m im £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 32 105
Bank overdrafts (85) -
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement (53) 168 (10) - 105
Borrowings
Current borrowings (30) (55)
Non-current borrowings (351) (88 5)
(381) (557) 02) - (94 0)
Obligations under finance leases
Current obligations under finance leases (08) (0 9)
Non-current obhgations under finance leases 29) (20)
37 08 - - 29
Dernvative financial instruments - - - {2 3) (23)
Net debt 47 1) (38 1) (12} (23) (88 7)

30 Related parties

Group

Related party transactions with the Directors are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on page 25

Share-based payment transactions which include transactions with key management are disclosed in notes 4 and 25

Contributions to pension schemes are disclosed in note 22 Costs incurred by the Group to administer pension schemes amounted to
less than £0 1m 1n both 2009 and 2010

Company
The following table provides the totad amount of transactions and year end balances with related parties for the relevant financial year
Amounts due
from relsted  Amounts due to
Sales of goods partiecs  related parbes
£m £m £m
Subsidiary undertakangs
2009/10 36 498 97
2008/9 32 60 4 41

The Company guaranteed bank and other borrowings of subsidiary undertakings amounting to £8 6m (2009 £7 1m)

31 Events after the balance sheet date

A number of changes to the UK Corporation tax system were announced in the June 2010 Budget Statement The Finance Act (No 2) 20t(hs
expected to include legislation to reduce the man rate of corporation tax from 28% to 27% from 1 April 2011 Further reductions to the main
rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 24% by | April 2014 The changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance

sheet date and, therefore, are not included in these financial statements

The proposed reductions of the main rate of corporation tax by 1% per year to 24% by Apnl 2014 are expected to be enacted separately each
year and would have the effect of reducing the deferred tax hability provided at 1 May 2010 The Directors do not anticipate that these changes
will matenally change the deferred tax position presented 1n these financial statements
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Group five year financial summary

2006
2010 2009 2008 2007 restated
£m £m £m £m £m
Summarised income statements
Revenue 3166 4828 5215 4759 4514
Gross profit 3160 2958 3231 2908 2706
Operating profit 282 223 608 688 662
Underlying operating profit 341 228 634 595 587
Net finance costs {(59) (56} 13) (18) (20}
Underlying profit before tax 282 172 621 577 567
Exceptional ttems {59} (05) (26} 93 75
Profit before tax 223 167 595 670 642
Tax on ordinary activities (65} 49) (16 7) (207) (201)
Profit for the financial period 158 118 428 463 441
Extracts from balance sheets
Non-current assets 2471 2658 2542 1849 180 4
Net assets 712 672 743 680 560
Net debt (713} (97.1) (57 5) (69) (291)
Ratios and statistics
Number of stores at period end 703 695 675 621 538
Total space (sq ft - gross) '000 6,206 6,155 5816 5,397 5027
Gross margin {%) 61 2% 61 3% 62 0% 61 1% 59 9%
Underlying operating margin (%) 66% 47% 122% 125% 13 0%
Operating margin (%) 55% 46% 11 7% 145% 14 7%
Underlying earnings per share (pence) 316p 18 2p 63 5p 58 3p 57 5p
Basic earrungs per share {pence) 23 5p 17 6p 63 2p 68 2p 65 0p
Dividends per share (pence) 16 Op 80p 520p 50 0p 49 Op
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Carpetright plc

We have audited the financral statements of Carpetnight plc for the
52 week period ended 1 May 2010 which compnse the Group and
Company Balance Sheets, the Group Income Statement, the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group and Company
Cash Flow Statements, the Group and Company Statements of
Changes i Equity and the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the Parent
Company financial statements, as applied 1n accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors

and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true
and far view Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements
1n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethucal Standards for Auditors

This report, mcluding the optnions, has been prepared for and only
for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 and for no other purpose We
do not, n giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibihity for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom thus report 1s
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
musstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounung policies are appropnate to the
Group’s and the Parent Company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
stgtuficant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

Opimion on financial statements
In our opinion

e the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 1 May 2010 and
of the Group's profit and Group's and Parent Company's cash
flows for the period then ended,

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Umion,

# the Parent Company financial statements have been properly
prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Compames Act 2006, and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opimon

¢ the part of the Directors’ Remuneratron Report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Compamies Act
2006, and

¢ the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the finanaal
year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent
with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception
We have nothung to report 1n respect of the following

Under the Companues Act 2006 we are required to repart to you
if, 1n our opimion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recerved from branches not visited by us, or

 the Parent Company finanaal statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not 1n
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

¢ we have not recewved all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

e the Directors’ statement, set out on page 27, in relation to going
concern, and

» the parts of the Corporate Governance Report relating to the
Company’s comphance with the mine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for our review

John Ellis (Semor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

28 June 2010
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Calendar

2010

Q1 interim management statement 4 August
Annual General Meeting 9 September
First-half trading update 27 October
First-half ends 30 Qctober
Interim results announcement 14 December
2011

Q3 mtennm management statement 2 February
Second-half trading update 27 Aprl
Year ends 30 Aprl
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